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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax:603-27M230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

March 6. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

.State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and 'Housing
Stability, to enter into a sole source agreement with Southwestern Community Services, Inc., 63
Community Way, P.O. Box 603, Keene, NH 03431-0603 (vendor code 177511- R001), to provide a
Permanent Housing Program to individuals experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum
of Care Program, in an amount not to exceed $89,787, effective April 1, 2020 or upon Governor and
Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through March 31, 2021. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $22,448

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $67,339

Total $89,787

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because federal regulations require the Department to identify
vendors with whom the Department will contract during the annual federal Continuum of Care Program
renewal application process prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its criteria. The
application process and timing of grant terms do not align with state or federal fiscal years. The start
date of a grant is based on the month in which each grant's original federal agreement was issued. This
results in Continuum of Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests,
occurring in various months throughout the year.
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The purpose of this request is to provide a Permanent Housing Program that delivers permanent
housing and supportive services, as well as associated administrative services, to individuals facing
homelessness to increase the ability of participants to live more independently.

The vendor will provide permanent housing and supportive services targeted to serve five (5)
households previously experiencing chronic homelessness, at any given time, from April 1, 2020 through
March 31. 2021.

The attached agreement represents one (1) of thirty (30) total agreements, all of which have
renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year. The thirty (30) agreements are with vendors who
are located throughout the state to ensure statewide delivery of housing services through New
Hampshire's Continuum of Care Program.

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development established the Continuum of Care
concept to support communities in their efforts to address the problems of housing instability and
homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves
three main purposes;

(1) A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

(2) A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis.

(3) An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support sen/ices for individuals
and families who face homelessness.

The Department ensures contract compliance and vendor performance in the following ways:

(1) Annual compliance reviews are performed and include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

(2) Statistical reports are submitted by the vendor on a semi-annual basis which Include various
demographic information and income and expense reports, including match dollars.

(3) The vendor is required to maintain timely and accurate data entry in the New Hampshire
Homeless Management Information System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes
and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these contracts.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the parties have the option to extend contract
services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Executive Council approval.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, Permanent Housing and
supportive services for homeless Individuals may not be available in their communities, and there may
be an increase in demand for services placed upon the region's local welfare authorities. Lack of services
may also cause individuals to become homeless.

Area served: Cheshire County

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Office of Community Planning and Development, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # TBD.
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In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available, General funds \will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

1 ft *

on
Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



l?bRM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: rnntinuiim of Care. Next Sleo^ Permanent Houittnc Promm

Notice: This asrccmcnl and all of its attachments shall become public upon submissipn to Governor and
&<ccutive Council forappiov-al. Any information that is piivaie, confidential or pr6p.rictar>- must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the coniraci.

ACREF.MENT

TliC State o.fNew' Haihpshirc and the Contr^ior hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 l,State Agency Name
NH Dcpanmcnlof Health and Human Scrvic-es

1.3 Contractor Name
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

1.2 Stale Agency Address
i29 Pleasant Street
Concord, Nil 03301-3857

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603)352-7512

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42^23010-7927

102-500731

1.9 Contraciing Oniccr for Slate Agency
Nniltah D. WTihc, Director

or Signature1.11 C

1.13 AcRWwIedgeme

1.4 Contractor Address.
63 Community Way
P.O. Box 603

Kcene, NH 03431-0603

1.7 Completion Date

Mareh 31.2021

1.8 Price Lirhitaiion

589,787

1. 10 Slate Agency Telephone Number
603-271-963!

1.12 Namc.and Title of Coniracior Siujiatory

Jidnn ft.VemirqXEQ
. County of

On 5 BCdO, before the undersigned ofTiccr, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfacioniy
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block I. I I, and acknowledged thai s/hc c.-iccuied this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

oh of the PencusticcfN1.13.1 Sign ure

IScall

1.1.3.2 Name and of Notary or Justice of the Peace^

Tj4 State Agcncyi^i^nalurc

)atc:

U 6 Approval b^c\H. Dcpailitient of^ninMritiStl [Jivislon.of Personnel fif applicable)
3^.- Direelpr, Dn:

1.15 VJamr&nd Title of State Agency Signatory ^

. rtf P^r«ftnn/»t /if/innlirahlf) '

I 17 Approval by the Attorney CT^craKForm, Substance nnd Execution) Qf applicabk)

By:

1.18 Apprpyid tlfc Gowrnor and E.veculive.Cciuncil (if applicable)

By; On:

Pggc I br4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. ThciSlalc of New Hanipshire, acting
through the agency identified in block t.l (^Siate J. engages
conlracior identified in block 1.3 (".Contractor* j to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both; identified and more, particularly described in ,the attached
EXHIBIT A which is Incorporated herein by inference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OFSERVICES.
3.1 Notwithsiandihg any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Cipvernor and
Executive Councij of (he State ofNcw Hampshire, if

applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
. hcrcundcr, shall become effective on the date tlie Governor
and F^xecutive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval Is rcquiredi in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown In block
1. 14 ("Eflective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EITcciivc pate, all Service's pcfforin'ed by the Contractor prior
to the'Effective Dare shall be perforchcd ai the sole risk of the
Controcfor, and in the event that this A^'ccmcm docs not
become effective, the Stale shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete oil Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGRFEMEiVr.
Notwithstanding .any provision of this Agreement to the
cohtrur)', all obligations of the State hereiinder, including,
without limitation, tlie cofitinuance of paythcnls hcrcundcr, are
contingent upon the availability and cohliriucd appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hcrcundcr in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or lennlnaiion of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds becoine available, if;ever, and shall
have the right to lennihale this Agreement imnicdiaicly upon
giving the Contraitornoiicc ofsuch termination'. The State
shall not be required to iranbTer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event tunds in that
Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRiCE/PRlCE LIMITATION;
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBlf B which is incorporated herein by reference.

. 5.2 The payment by the Stale of the coniract price shall be the
bniy and the complete,reimbursement to .the Coiitraclor for all
expense, of whatever riature incurred by ilic.Coniractpr in the
.pcrform'aiicc hereof, and sltall be^ the only and the complete
;c6ini>enisalion to the Contractor fbf.thc Sef\'ic€S..The'.Siate
"shall have no liability to the Contractor oiher than the contract
price.
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5J The Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
Otherwise payable to ll* Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or pcnnittcd by N.H: RS.A
80:7 through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notxvithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unc.xpcctcd circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, e.vceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQU.AL EMPLOYMENT
OPPQRTUNm'.
6.1 In connection with the performance ofUic Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and.orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited in, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize au.xiliary
aids and seivices.io ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, aiKl convey
information to the Contractor. |n addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During llte term of this Agreement, the Contractor .shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sc.x.
handicap. se.xual orientation, or national origin and will take
afilrmaiivc action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 if this Agreement Is funded in any part by nKuiics of the
United States, ilte Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of E.xcculivc Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Uniployrncni Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations oFthc United States Departiiteni of Labor (-i 1
C.F.R: Part 60)! and wiilt any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New l lampshirc or the United States issue to
implement these reguiations. The Contractor further agrees to
pcnnit the State or United States access to any of the
Contraclor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, teniis and conditions of this Agreement

7. PERSONNEL

7.1 The Contractor shall at Its o\yn expense proyide all
personnel ncccsjiary to perforin the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engagi^ in the Sctviccs shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and othcrvrise authorized to do so under oil applicable
laws.

12 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and fora period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block L7,' the Contractor shall not hire,
and slu-iTl not permit any subcbhiractor or other person, firm or
corporation \sith whom It Is. engaged in a combined effort to
perfomi the Services to hire, any pcrso.n who is a Slate
employee or official, who is materially Involved in the
procurcmcnt.administrBtion or ̂ rformanccoflhis
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Agreement- This provision shall survive Icrminailon of this
Agrwment
7.J the Contracting .OfTiccr speciified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispiite concerning the interrelation of this Agreement,
the Ooritracting Olticer's decision shall be fihal for the State.

.8. F.VHivrrOK pEFAHLTrtlEMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of ,the following ̂ ts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hCTi-undcr
("Event of DefaulV'):
8.1.1 failure to perform ih'c Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

. 8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcrcunder: andyor
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement
8.2 Upon the occurrcncepf any Event of Default the State
may take any piic, or mprc. or all, of the .following actions:

.8.2.1 ̂ yc the Contractor a wTittcn notice Specifytrig the Event
PfDcftuliand r^uiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence ;6f a greater or lesser spcuificaiibn of time, thirty (30)
days from the date'of thc'npiice; ajid if the Event of Defauli Is
not timely remedied, terminate ihis 'Agreement,"effective two
(2) days oflcr ̂ ving the Contractor not ice of termination;
8:2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under (his
.Agnicmcnfand ordering that (he portion of the contract price
\vhich would other\yise accrue to the Contractor during ihe
period froui the date of such nbiicc until such time as the State
deterinlncs that thc.Cbhtractbr has cured the Bvcht prbclauli
shall never be paid to the Cphirnctor,
8.2.3 sot Off against any oilier oblighliohs the State may owe to
the Contractor any'dahiages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of iLs
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCES^CONFIDENTIALmV
PRF..Sli:RVATiON^
;9.1 As u-sed in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and thiiigs developed or obtained duHrig the
pcrfotiriancc of, or acquired or developed hy reason of, ihb
Agreement, including but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, suA'cys, maps; charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, anajyses.
graphic representations, computer prograihs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or un finished. -
9.2 All data and any property which ha.s been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for thui purpose
under this A^cemeht, sHali be the pro^rty of the State, hnd
shall be fctiirncd (o ihe Siaie upon demand bi^ up^n
tx^indtion of this Agreement for any reason.
"9.3 Cptifidenlialiiy of data shall be governed by N,M. RSA
chapter 91-A or other cxistitig law. Disclosure ofdata
rcqijircs prior Vvriiten approval of the .Stale.

Pitgc

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termlriatibn of
this Agreement for any reason ollwr than the completion of ihc
Services, the Contractor sltail deliver to the (Tontiraciing
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
icrminaiion, a rqyjrt ("Termination Report") descHbiog in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. IIk form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Tcrrnination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXKfB IT A.

11. COiNTI^CTGR'S REI.ATION TO TlIK STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Cpniracior is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is'neithcr tm agent nor
an employee ofihc Stale. NcithcrtheContractornpr any of its
otTcers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive ajiy benefits, xvorkcrs' compensalion
or other emoluments provided by thc'Staie to its employees.

12. ASSlGNMEN'r/DELEGATION/SUBCONtRACTS.
The Contractor sluill not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in (his A^ccmcnt without the prior wrirtett nbiicc ami
consent of the State. None of the Ser\'ices shall be
subcontracted by the Gohlractor without the prior xvritlcn
notice and consent of the Stale.

13. INDCMNIFICATfON. The Contractor shall defend,
indemiiify and hold harmless the Slate, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses sulTcred by the
State',' its of^cers and employees, aiid tmy and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State,' Its ofTlcers
and employees, by or on bchalfofany person. on account of.
based or resulting from, ari.sing put of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregptng. nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
resctvcd to the State. Tliis covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Cbmracior shall, at its sole expense, obtain tuid
niaintain iii furec,and shall require smy subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the fpllovying
iiisunuicc;

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injuiy, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and ' ,
I4.1!2 special cause of loss coverage fonYj covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement val ue of the property.
14.2 The policies described msubparugraph M.Thcrcin ithal!
Ik on policy forms and cridorscnicnts approy^ for use in ihc
State of New liampshirc by the N.H. I)epartment of
Iftsiirahce, and issued by insurera licensed in the State of New.
Hampshire.

3of4 ' . /■
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Coniraciiug Officer
idchtiflcd.ih block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificatefs)
. of itisiinuicc foir all iiisiirancc required under.this Agreement.
Conlractor shall also furhish to ̂  Contracting Officer
identified In block !.9, or his or her successor, certificalcfs) of
insuranccTor all renewaj(s) ofinsurancc rciquircd tinder this
Agreement no laicf'ihah thiny (30) days pVipr to the expiration
dale of each of the insurance policies. The certificatefs) of
insurance and ̂ y rcncwals.ihercof shall be atlachcd and arc

-incoFporatcd herein by reference, liach ecrtincate(.s) of
insurance shall contain a clause rwiuiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer' idcntiCed in block 1.9. or hi.s
or her successor, "no less than thirty (30).days prior ?.\Tittcn
jK)tice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKER' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By siting this a^eemeht, the Contractor agreeti.
certifies tmd, wan^nls thai the Contractor Is tn compliance with
or exempt from, the rcquircrhcntsofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("H'orkers' Compensation").
15. 2 To the c.\teht the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or tissigncc to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person propose.s to
.undertake pursuan^to this AgreenicnL Contractor shall
ftjfnish tl>e Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of VVorkcrs' Compensation in the
manner described in N.I L I^A chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The Stale shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any otherplnim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation law in connection with the performance of the
Services under thi.s .Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Evcril of Default shall

deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No.express
failure to enforce any |;.vent of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provlsion.s hereof upon,any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party.hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Ofrice,addrc.ssed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT.This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by ah instainicni in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after apprxis-al of such
amehdntcnt, w-alver or discharge by tlic Governor, and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless ito

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
Slate law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is biriding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and tltcir respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to cxprxsjs their mutual
Intent, and no rule of cohsiruciion shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES, 'lite parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
eon.sinjcd to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and tltc words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth.in the atlachcd EXHIBIT Care incbrporaicd herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
he contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisioas of this Agrccnient will.remain in full force and
cflect. ,

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement tut'd
understanding between the parlies, and .supersedes a!) prior
Agreements and undcrstanding.s relating hereto.
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Ngw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Coh^ Steps Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanerit Housing Program

1. Provisions ADDlicabie to All Services

1 A. Xhe .Contractor .shall subrhit a detailed description, of the language assistance services they'\yill
prbyidetd'pbrsonW.yinth English proficiency to ensure meaningful acce^.toth^r programs
and/or sbrvices within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS^
Bureau of Hpusirig Supports
105 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The.Cohtractqr 'agrees that, to the exterit future state or federal legislation or court qrdeis .may,
have an irnpact Oh the services described herein, the State, through the Bure.au of Housing
Supports (BHSj, has the fight to modify service, priorities and expenditure r^ulrernents under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith'.

1.3. For the p.ufpbses. of this agreement, the Department has Identified the Contractor as, a
:subrecipieht, In.accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Nohvithstanding Xhe .confidentiality procedures established under 24 GFR 578.103(b). IJS
Department of .Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector
General,;, and the Complrpller General of the United States, or -any of their authorized,
repreSenWfives. ra'ust hay.e^^^^ right of access to ail books, docurnents, papers, or pther records
;qf the\,Cdritradtor fhat ;are pertinent to the .Continuum of Care ,(CoC) "grant, in, order tdraake
audits, ex^nimatibnis. e^ and transcripts;. These rights of access are not limited to the
required retehtion period. long asthe records are retained..

1.5. TheContractor shall adhere to; federal and state financial' and cphfidehtlamy laws, and comply
with the .program nafratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detailed
In the applicabie:Noll.ce"of Funding Available iNOFA) Cot Project Application approved by HUD.

'1.6. The Contractor.shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and'^4 CFf? 578 and other written, appropriate HUD policies and directives.

1.7. The Contractor shall ensure all programs are licensed to provide client level data into the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMiS). Programs shall ,fo|,lp,w NH
HMIS policy, Inciuding specific information reguired for data entry, accura.cy of data entered, and
time required, for' data entry. .The Contractor bhail comply with Exhibit I. Health Insurarice
Portability "and Accdurttability A.ct Business Associate Agreemerit and Exhibit.k. ,DHHS.Security
Requirernehts, vyfiich are;attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

1.8. The: Cphtractbr shall cooperate fully with and ahsWer all questions related to this contract frpra
' rapreseritatives of the State or Federal agencies .who may conduct periodic observation arid
review of performance, activities and an inspection of records and documents.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program, whjch is to facilitate the mpyerpent
: of homeless arid chronically "hofneless iridividuals and families to perriianenl -housing rarid.
:maxirrium self-sufficiency.

2. Scope of Work

'2.1. 'T.he,.C6ritractof;shall implement a.Copfdinated Entry Systern for all projects'.furided by the.OqC
. ;PfdqraM, Erne^ericy .SplUtipris Grants Program, .and .Housing pppbrtunitibs fof Peraoh
iAlD,S;Rrogfam.riri;a Interirri rule. 24 CFR 578. arid as:amehdedr^^^

Southwoitcrti Commun^ Services. Inc. EnhibilA Coouactof tnitals , _

.. Pap" ' ̂ rfe'"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Next Steps Pormanent Housing Program

Exhibit A

2 2 The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Housing program that is targeted to serve five (5)
homeless individuals.and two (2) homeless.families, and which includes bgt Is not.limtted to;

:2.2.1. Utilizing the Housing First model, ensuring:

2.2.1.1. Barriers ̂ to entering housing .are not Imposed beyond those required by
■  re"gqtaticm"or^atDte;"and"

2.2>1.2. Participation will only terminate for the most,severe reasons, once available
options have been exhausted to help a participant maintain housing.

2 2 2 Developing of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant at
Intake and. at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportwe
Services is required, with the ulUmate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining
the skills necessary to live In the community Independently.

2 3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operaUng procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and shall establish and maintain
sufhcient records to enable HUD and 8HS to determine Contractor requirement compliance,
including:

2.3.1. nohtinuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the follbwing docunientaUon
related to establishing and operating a C6C:

2 3 11 Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable
evidence of horrieless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b);

.2 3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status. The Contractor shall rnaintain
records that establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each individual or
family who r^elves CoC homelessness prevention assistance, as identified In
24 CFR 576.560(c); and

2 3 13 Rficords of Reasonable Relief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall
maintain documentation of each program participant who moved to a. different

CoC due to imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, as defined in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall
retain documentation that includes, but Is not limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, only if the original violerice Is not already
documented in the program participant's case file.. This may be
written observation of the housing or service provider; a.letter Of.qther
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom 'the victim has sought assistance;
medical or dental records; court records or law enforcerrient records;
or written certification by the program participant to whom the
violence occurred or by the head of household; and

2 3 1.3.2 The reaspri'able t>ellef of imminent threat of further domestic violence.
dating violence/dr sexual assault or stalking, which would Include
threats from a third-par^i such as a friend or family meniber of the
perpetrator of the violence. This may be written observaiion by the
housing or service provider; a letter or other document^n from a

Souttnvftftiem Community &6r>'lces. inc.
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victim seri/ice (Drovicter, sociai worker, legal assistance -.providefi
pastoral counselpr, mental health provider, or other professional from
whom the .victim' has sought assistance;; current restraining order;
recent court order or other court records; law enforcerhent report of
records; cbmmunicatipn records from the perpetrator of the'violent:^
or farhily. merfibers of frierxls of the perpetrator of the violence,
Ihcludihg emails, voicefnails, text fhes^ges, and sociarmedia p6^;
of a written certification by the. program participant to whom the
violence occurred or the head of household.

.2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each pfograni' participant who receives housing
assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program
participant, "the Contractor shall keep the fbllowihg docurrientation of annual
Income:

2.3.1.^4.1. Income evaluation form spe'cined by HUD and complete<j by the
Cpntractor;

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents, which may include the most recent .wage
statement, unemployment compensation statement,: public benefrts.
statement, and bank sta.tements.fpr the assets held by the prdgrarh
participant and income received liefore the date of the evaluation; and

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents, are unobtainable, a written
statement by a relevant third party, which may Include ah employer
or a government benefits administrator, or the written certification by
the Contractor's iritake staff bf .lhe oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received pverthe rriost
recent period; or

2.3.1:4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party yerificalion are
unobtainable, the written certrfication by the program "participant of
the amount ,of income that the program participant is reasonably,
expected to receive over the three (3) month period following the
evaluation.

2.3.1.6. Program Participant Records, in addition to evidence of homelessness status

or at-risk-of-homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor shall keep,
records for each program participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant,
including evidence that the Contractor conducted an annual
assessment of services for those program participants that remain In
the program for more ̂ an a year and adjusted the service "package
accordingly, and including case managemerrt services as provided In
24 CFR 578.37(a){1)Cii)(F); and

2.3.1.5.2. where applicable, compliarice with the termination pf .assistance,
repuirerhent in i24 CFR 578.9T

2.3.1.6. Hoijsinc Standards. The Contractor shall retain documentation of compliance
with the housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(bj, including inspection reports..

Soirttny«sum C^mnnirUiy Setytec^ Contractor irnuils
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,2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor shall document the types otsupportive
services provided under the Contractor's program and the arrioupts spent'Oh
those services. The Contractor shall keep documentation that the records were
reviewed at least annually and that the service package offered to prograrn
participants was adjusted as necessary.

~2'X. rhe Contractor snaii maimain recordsThaTaocumem compliance wlthl

2:4.1. The Ordanizational conflict-ofrinterest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c);

2.4:2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.,95(b); and

;2.4.3. The bther Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, Implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest
policy that compiles with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any
exceptions to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall.comply and retain.documentation of compliance with;

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements In accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g);

-2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b);

2.6.3. Affirmalivelv Furthering Fair Housing bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach,
and other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program In accordance with 24
CFR 578.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified
by HUD; and

2.6.6. Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR,part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentialtty and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917). the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. .All records containing protected identifying Information of any Individual or farhily who
applies for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure, and
confidential;

2.7:2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care
funds are not to be made, public, except with written authorization of the person
responsible for the operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of, a program participant y/ill not be made public,
except as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subreclpient and

■  consistent with State and |oca! laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure alt records, originals or copies made
by microfilminQ. photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Cohtinuum of Care fund,s
are retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Dale and receipt of final payment
by the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess
of the five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

Soothv/eswm Community Saivfeiti, Inc. Eo<hftiitA ContractorIniiiali
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3. Program ReDorting Requirements

3.1. The; Cbhtrador shall submit the follovving reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report fAPRi: Within thirty (30) days after the Contract Cpmpletipn
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the
Project Activities, showing In particular how the Contractor Is carrying put the project in
the ttianner proposed in the application submitted to HUD for-the relevant fiscal year
NOFA. The APR Shall be In the form required or specified by the State, and submitted to
the address listed in section 1.1. above;

•3.1.2. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS, a.corrective action plan
,fpr any peiformance measure that was not achieved; and

3.1.3. Other Reports as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Admlriistration

4.1. The Contractor shall, have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings r^uested
by BHS, iricluding training in data security and confidentiality, according,tp state and federal
laws, to the extent possible, BH.S shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend siich' meetings
five (5) working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall Inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) daysof the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Gohtraclp'r shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the applicable HUD Project
Appiicatich .^F-424..

5.2. The, Contractor shall abide.by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, ,but not limited to the following;-

5.2.1. https://www.hudexchanae.info/proqrams/coc/svstem-performance-
measures/ftauidance:

5.2.2. 24 .CFR 578; Ccntinuum of Care Program; and

5.2.3. Public Law 102-550.

5.3. The Contractor.shall be accountable for all reporting requirements as detailed above in Section
3., Program Reporting Requirements.

5.4: Annually, the .Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS. a corrective action plan for any
perfofrriarice measure thafwas not achieved.

.Southft-esJomCcmmunrtySeK'ices. Inc. Exhibits Contractortnltlats
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MgTHQD AND CONDITIONS PRECEOENT TO PAYMENT

1- PermaLneritHouainQ Prooram Funding

1.1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8, Price
Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

1.2 this Agreement is funded with federal funds made available through the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development, Title XIV Housing Programs under the Hprneless
Emergency Assistance arid Rapid Transition to Housing Act {HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-
Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550), under the Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance"(CFDA) arid Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) as follows:

1.2.1. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.2. CFDA#: 14.267

1:2.3. FAIN#: TBD

1.3. The Contractor shall provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1;1. Audited Financial , Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the Audited Financial Report within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

2.2. Conformance with 2 CFR part 200: The Contractor shall use grant funds only in accordance
with proc^ures, requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

2.3. If the Contractor is not subject to the audit requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor
shall submit one (i) .copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the
guidelines set forth by the Comptroller General of the United States in ^Standards for Audit
of Governmental Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions," within ninety (90) days
after contract completion date.

3. Prelect Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bv the State

3.1. Project , Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" means all expenses
.directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payrnent, in accordance with Public
Law 102-550, as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised frorri
lime to time and vrith the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the Stale. All
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200,

SetfOwwWn. community Ceiyicw, Inc. E*hib>l B ContwcW
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3.2. Cbhtihuum'of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 578.39
through 578.63 When used to establish and operate projects under five program component^:
perrnaneht housjng; transitional housing; supportive siervlces only; HMIS; andi in some,
cas^', homeless prevention. Adminisiratrve costs are eligible for all corhpdhents. All
components are subject to the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible actisrities ih
a single project found in 24 CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractpr shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD
regulations and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirernents shall be documented with each payment request.

3.^3.3.. The Cdntfactor shall itiatch all grant funds except for leasing funds, vrith no. less than
twenty-five (25) ̂rcent of funds or in-kind^6ontributioris from other soured.

3.3.4. The Conlractdr shall utilize cash match for the'cost of activities that are eligible under
subpartDof 24 CFR'578. The Contractof.shall:

3.3.4.'1; Maintain fecbrds of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the
match requirement in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.4:2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted.

3.3.4.3. Ensure records include melhodologies that specify hovy the values of third
pai^ iri-kind contributions were derived.

3.3.4:4. Ensure records include, to the exterit feasible, voluriteer services that are
supported by the saniie rnethods used to support the allocation of regular
persorihel costs.

3.4. Pavment'of Project Costs:

3^4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual,
eligible expenditures incurred In the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in
accordance with the approved line Items as specified in Exhibit B-X, Budget, and as
defined by HUD under the provisions of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable
regulations, subject to the ayailability of sufficient funds.

3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
ailowabie.costs as stated in Section 4. Expense Eligibility, t)el.ow. The .Contractor must
have written appr'oyai from the State.piior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Schedule of Pavrhents:

3.4.3.1. Ail reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final
reirhbursement request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the fifteenth
(15th) day of each month, for the previous month, and accorfipanied by an
invoice from the Contractor for the amount of each requested disbufsemeht
aipng vyith a payment reque^ forni and any other dpcumenlatl.on required,
as designated by the State, which shall,be completed.arid signed.by the".
Contractor

.SouUnwestein ComniunKy'&Qtvfecs.'Inc. Exfifbil 6 Contractor Inltiait
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3.4.3.2. The-State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30),days of
receipt of each Invoice, subs^uent to approval of the subrhitted invoice
and if ,sufficient funds are available.

3.4.3.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs.and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial Information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.4.3!4. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Paragraph 2.1.2.,
above., all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to; housinQsuooortslnvQices@dhhs.nh.Qov

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the,State rriay
review all Project Costs Incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expenses that are not
determined to be allpvyable br are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures,
and shall, by written notice, specifying the disallowed expenditures, informing the
Contractor of any such disallowance.

3.5.3. if the State disallows costs for which payment has not .yet been made, it shall refuse
to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement are subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part.-in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or.State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or If the said services, products, required report subrhissions', as detailed In
Exhibits A arid B. or NH-HMIS data entry requirements have riot been satisfactorily
completed in accordance wHh the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

4. Expense EliQibilitv

4.1, Based oh the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care Program funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of
Cafe Program, for contract services.

4.2. Qoeratina Expenses:

4.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

4.2.f .T, Maintenance and repair of housing.

4.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car).

4.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of,the
hbusihg (provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the
system and expected replacement cost).

4.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the
units or area Is paid for with grant funds.

4.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water.

So'uUTWs'Mem Co'nWunlty Soivicoi. Inc, Exhibit B
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4.2;1.6. Furniture and equipment.

4.2;2. Ineligible costs include:

4.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs In the same project.

4.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service^nly facilities.

4:2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining arrd
fepairirig the housing are Included in the leaser

4.2.2.4. InellQible costs. Any cost not described as eligible under section 4.3.3
t^lovy is not ah eligible cost of providing supportive services using
Continuurn of Care program'funds. Staff training and costs, of obtaining
professional licensure or cisrlificaUons needed to provide supportive
services are not eligible costs.

4.3. SuDDortive Sen/Ices

4.3.1. Eligible .supiwrtive services costs shall comply with ail HUD regulations in 24 CFR
578.53, and are available to Individuals actively participating in the perrinanent
housing program.

4.3.2. Special DODulatidns. All eligible costs are eligible.to the same extent for program
participants vyho are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with HlV/AIDS;
and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

4.3.3. Eligible costs shall include:

4.3.3.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of the assessment

required by 578.53(a) (2).

4.3.3.2. Assistance with rhovino costs. Reasonable one-tirhe" moving costs :are
eligible and include truck rental and hiring a moving company.

4.3.3.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the
program participant(s) are eligible costs.

4:3.3.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and
providing child-care vouchers, for children from families experiencing
homeles'sness, including providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive
and coordinated developmentaj activities are eligible.

4.3.3.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knqv/ledge 'and basic
educational skills are eligible.

4.3.3.6. Emplovirient assistance and lob traihlnb". The costs of'establishing and
operating employment assistani^ and job training, programs are eligible.
Including classroorri, online and/or computer instruction, on^he:job
instruction, sen/ices that assist - individuals In securing employment,
acquiring learning skills, and/or increasing eaming potential., Th'e qo;^ of
providing reasonable stipends :to program participants In employment
assistance and job,training programs is also an diglble cost.

4;3^3.7. F^. The cost of providing meals or groceries to programjiarticipants is
eligible:

S^i^wcctcm CoTiriiur^ .ExtiiitB ContrDCtor. Initials.
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4.3.'3.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible
program participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are,
eligible.

4.3.3.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys
^and by person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys. foV advice
and repre^ntalion In matters that interfere with homeless individual or
family's ability to obtain and retain housing.

4.3.3.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching crtlical life management skills that
may never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical
or mental Illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessn^s
are eligible. These services must be necessary to a^ist the program
participant to function Independently in the community. Component life
skills, training are the budgeting of resources and money management,
household management, conflict manageriient. shopping forfood and other
need^ items, nutrilion, the use of public transporlatioh, and parent
training:

4.3.3.11. Merital Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
mental health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals.
Component services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family,
or group therapy sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or
explanations about the use and management of medications; and
combirratiohs of therapeutic approaches to address multiple problems.

4.3.3.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment
of medical cohdrtions when provided by licensed medical professionals.

4.3.3.13. Outreach Services. The costs of aclivilles to engage persons for the
purpose of providing Immediate support and intervention, as well as
identrfying potential program participants, are eligible.

4.3.3.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant
intake and assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual
counseling, and drug testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxification and other
inpatient drug or alcohol treatment are ineligible.

4.3.3.15. Transportation Services, as described in 24CFR 578(e) (15).

4.3.3.16. Utilltv Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility
~  " deposits. Utility deposits, must be one-time, paid directly to utility

compariies.

4.3.3.17. Direct provision of services. If a service described in items 4.3.3.1.
thrpugh 4:3.3.16. of this section is. being directly delivered by the
recipidnl or subreclpient, eligible costs for those services also include
the.foilowing:

4.3.3.17.1, The costs of labor or supplies, and materials incurred by .the
recipient or subreclpient In directly providirig supportive
services to program participants; and

S6uCw/«tcrn Commurury Serytcfti, Inc. EiAiDlj n Coolr^Wr InJUals
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4 3.3.17.2. The salary and benefit packages of the recipienit and
subreclpient.staff who directly deliver the"services.

4.3.4. Greht funds rhay be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals dnd farhilies.

4.3.5. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already
receiving rental assistance, or living in a housing linit receiving rental assistance or
operating assistance, through other federal, State, or Ipcai sources,

4.3.6. Rental assistance shall be -administer^ in accordance with the policies and
prckedures established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 578T(a) (9) and 24
GFR 578.51. and rriay te:

4,3.6.1. Short teim, up to 3 months of rent;

4.3^6.2. Medium terrn, for 3-24 rtionths; or

4.3,6.3. Ldng^erm, for longer thari 24 months.

4.3.7. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months
of rent.

4;3.8. An.advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in
. addition to -the Security deposit and payment of first month's rent,

4:3.9. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is., reasonable, as
.deterfnined byjhe Gpntractor, In relation "to rents being cha/ged.'forcprTiparable
unassisted units, taking, into, account the location, size, type, quality, amehitie's',
facilities, and management and rhaihteriance of .each uriit.

4.3,10..The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount riot to exceed one month's rent to
pay foriahy darhage 'td housing due to the action of a program participant,- For
Leasing fuhds onlv: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the
landlord from security deposits.

4.3.11. Housing shall l>e in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,'and. any" other
requlrernents of the jurisdiclipn in which the housing is.located regarding the condrtipn
of th.e ̂ rupture and operation of the housing or services.

4.3.12. The Cdntra'ctorJshall provide onepf the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-
based; Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described by HUD In
24 GFR 578.51.

4.3.12.1. Tehan't-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which prpgram
participahts choose housing of an appropriate size'in which to reside. VVhen
necessaiy to. facilitate the coordination of supporllye services, recipients
and subrecipients may require.program particlparits,to live In a specific area
for their entire period of participation, or In a specific-structure for th.e...first
year and In a .sp^cific area for the remainder of their period of pahicipatipn.
Short arid, rnediurn, term, rental assistance provided under .die Rapid Re-
Housirig'pfpgVam.cbihpd'nenl be tenant ba^d rehtal assistance.

4.3.12.2. - Sbohisbr-based rental assistance is provided through cPnlracts between
ihe .'recipient and .'Sponsor orgahizabon. A sponsor fmaybe a private,
ndnprofit.brgariiZaillbn. or a commuril^ nienlal tieaUh agetic^'j^|j^nshed

.Sou^tt«ite<iiCornmunity^rwe^^ Inc., fixhibli B Conyacw iTilaals
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as a public nonprofit organizatiori. Program participants must reside in
housing own^ or leased by the sponsor.

4.3.12.3. Prolect-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the
oweV :of an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the
subsidized units to program participants. Program participants will not
retain rental assistance if they move.

4.3.12.4. For prolect-based. sponsor-based. or tenant-based rental assistance;
program participants must enter Into a lease agreement for a term of at
least one year, which is terminable for cause. The leases must be
automatically renewable upon expiration for terms that are a minirnum of
one month long, except on prior nbtice by either party.

4.4. Administrative Costs:

4.4.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

4.4.1.1. The Contractor may'use funding awarded under this part, forthe payment
of project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of
Continuum of Care activities. This does not include staff and.overhead
costs directly related to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578-43
through 578.57, because those costs are eligible as part of those activities.

4.4.1.2, General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall
program management, coordination, morirtoring and evaluation. These
costs include, but are not limited to. necessary expenditures for the
following:

4.4.1:2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the Contractor's staff, or other
staff engaged in program administration.

4.4; 1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the Contractor may Include
the entire salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the
program of each person whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program involve program administration
assignments, or the pro rata. share of the salary, wages, and
related costs of each person vrtipse job includes, any program
administration assignments, the.Contractor may only uSe
one of these methods for each fiscal year grant. Program
administratiori assignments include the followihg:

.4.4.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and
amendmients to those budgets and schedules;

4.4.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with
program requirements;

.4.4.1.2.1.1.3, Developing interagency .agreements and
• agreements with ...subrecipients and Contractors to
barry .out program adiyities;'

.4.4.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and
compliance with program requirements;

SoutMv-Bilern.CciVifiwnity Scr<ices, Inc. EKhibit B Controctor lnitroi»
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4.4.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents fejatekJ to
the program for submlssioh to HUD;

4.4.1.2.1.1.6. Cobrdinatirig the solution of audit and monitoring'
findings:

4.4.1.2.1.1.7: Preparing reports and other documents directly
related to the program submission to HUD;

4.4.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated
objectives;

4.4^.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising .penwns whpse prirhary
responsibilities with regard to the program include
such assignments as those described in sectibris
4.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 4.5.1.2.1.1.8. above;

4.4.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs incurred for offtcial business in carrying
out the program;

4.4.1.2.1.1.11. Adrriiriistrative semces performed under third party
contracts or agreements, including such services as
general legal services, accounting services, and
audit senrices;

4.4.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services, r^uired for
administrarion of the'program, including such'goods
and services as. rental or purchase of ;^uipmenl.
insurance, utilities, office supplied, and rental and
maintenance, but hot purchase, of .office space;

4.4.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requlrerriehts, Costs
of providing training on Continuum : of Care
requirements and attending HUD^3ponsored
Coniinuum of Care trainings; arid

4.4.1^2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of cariying put ttie
environmental review responsibilities under 24 CFR
578.31

4.5; Leasino:

4.5.1. When the Contractor is leasing the structure, of portions thereof, grant furidS may be
used to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions
thefepf, to provide, housing or suppo'rtive services to.homeless persons.for up to three
(3) years., LeaSirig funds may riot be used to lease units or structures owned by
contractor, their >parent- .organization, any other related ,orgar)izatiop'(s),' .or
organizations that are merribers of a partriefshlp, where the partnership o.wris the
structure, unless HUD authorlzed.an exception for good cause.

4.5.2. I^equlrements;

4.5.2.1. Leasing structures. When grants,are used to pay,rent fo.r ;a|l ;pf part pf a
struirtufe or structures, the rerit paid rnust be reasonable in feiatjp'ri tprbhts
being charge'd In the .bfea for comparable space, jn addijipi^i the rent paid

. SouiK*eit^n.Cooywnay ̂rvices. Inc . COdiracioc Inltialo
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may not exceed rents currently being charged by the same, owner for
corhparabie.unassisted space.

4.5.2.2. Leasiho individual units. When the grant funds are used to pay rent for
individual housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents
being charged for cpmparable.units, taking into account the location, size,
type,'quality, amenities, facilities, and management services. In addition,
the rents may not exceed rents currently being charged for comparable
units, and the rent paid may not exceed HUD-determined fair market rents,

4.5.2;3. Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included in the rent, these utilities
may be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by the landlord,
these utjli^ costs are operating costs; except, for supportive service
facilities. If the structure is being used as a.supportive service facility, then
these .utility costs are a supportive service cost.

4.5.2.4. Secu'ritv deposits and first arid last month's rent. The Contractor may use'
grant funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months
of actual rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided
to the landlord in addition to security deposit and payment of the first
month's rent.

4.5.2.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Qccuoancv agreements and
sutileases are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

4.5.2.6. Calculation of bccupancv charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent
from' program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR
578.77:'

4.5.2.7. Proorarh income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
- participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24.
CFR 578.97.

4.5.2:8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

4.5.I9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in
cornparison to rents charged in the area for .similar housing unitS;.
bocumentation of rent reasonableness must be kept on file by the
Contractor.

4:5.2.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUOdetermined
fair rnarket rents.

4.5.2.11. -The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly: funds may not be
given directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

4.5.2.12. property .damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for
security deposits.

4.5:2.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.

4.5.2.14., Housing must be in compliance with all State and Ibcal housing codes,
licensing "requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Preyehtioh Act,

.;and any bther requirements of the jurisdiction In which the housing Is

Sovthwcs^njCommuhily Sejvic«a. Inc. Contracw «niiia!c
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looted T^afding the condition of the structure, and operation ;of ̂ e
hbusirig or seivices.

4.6. The Contracibr rhay charge program pattidpants rent and utilities (heat, hot water).-^HbwSver,
the.arnount charged may not excded the maximum amounts specified In HUD regulations (24
CFR-578^77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone. IntenriCt. access,
deaning. parking, pool charges; etc. are at the participant's option.

4.=7. The Coritractpr shall have any staff charged in full or part to Ihis contract. or counted as rnatch.
complete weekly or bi-vyeekly timesheets.

5. Contractor Financial Management System

5.1. Fiscal edntrol: The Gontractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting prpcedures that
ensure.proper dlsbursemeiht of,:ahd accounting for. grant furids and any required npnfederal
expendftures^ this-'responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations, of the
Contractor.

5.2. The Contractbr shall maintain a financial management system that complies With 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.

SoimiwMtem Cpfvmimity ̂ fvicos. Inc. Exftbiifi Contractoi Iraii^
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SPECIAL PRQV1SIQNS

Contractors pbligaiions: the Contractor covenants and agrees that ail funds received by the Contractor
uhder the Contr^t shall be used onjy as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and. in the furtherance of the,aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agf^S.as folidyvs:

1. Compliance'with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such elfgibinty determlnatipn shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orde'rsi .guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Mariner prDeterminationr Eliglbirrty determinations shall be made on forms proytd^ by
the Department for that purpose and shall be' made, and "remade at such tirhes as are prescribed lay
the Department.

3. Dpcumentatiori: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shaill maintain a data file on each redpient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
■information h«:esw(y. tp..Supj» determination and such other informatipn as the
Department requests. The Cohtractof shall furnish the Department with all forms and documehtalion
regai^i.ng eligibility determihatipns that the Department may request or require.

4. -Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
Individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing'regarding that delerminaiion, The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that ail applicants for services shall be. permitted to fill put
an application form and that each'applicant or re-applicant shall be infbrrhed of his/her right.to afeir
hearirig in accordance with Department regulations.

• 5. 'Gratuities or KIckbacksr.The Contractor agrees that It is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payrnert. gratuity ordfferpf, employment on behalf of the Contractor; any Sub-Contractor or

.' the Staie'ln order to influerice the peffohnahce of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Cdritr^t and any subcontract or sub-agreernent if it IS! .
determined that payments, jgrabities or offers of eitiptoymehtdf any kind, were offered of received by
any officials, officers, .employes or agents of the Contractor or SubrCpntraclor.-

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained Iri the Conlract.or inany
other.document, contract or underslahdirig; it Is expressly understood and agreed by the partly,
hereto.rthat no payments will be made hereunder to.reimburse the Contractpr for costs incurred for
any-purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective pate of the Contract
and^no payments shall be made for expenses incurred,by the Contractor for any services proyld^
pri.prto the date'on which'ihe individual applies for services or (except as otherv/ise provided by the
fede_fal regulatidns) prior to p deterrhination that the indh/idual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditipns of Purchase: Nptvyithstanding anything to the contrary contained in.the Contra'^, nothing
herein .a^ntalned shall be.de^ to obligate or require the Department to purchase servi.ces
hereunder at a rate which rei.mbur^s the Ctontracior in excess of the Conlraclprs cpsts,-at a rate',
vvhich exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality brsuch seryice, pr at a
rale which exceeds the rate char'ged by the Conlraclor to ineligible individuals or "PlhbKUiir^
funders for such service. If at ahy lime durir^ the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenidltufe Report hereunder.'the Departrrieht shall determine that the. Contractor hbs'.used.
payrrients;h.ereuhdef to reim items pf expense other than such costs,'or has feceive,d payment
In excess of such costs or irtexce^of such faieiS charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or pther thlfd party funde'fs. lhe pepartrnent may elect to:

7,-1, Renl^ptjate the.ra hereuhd.ef, in which event hew rateij shall tje wtablished;
7.2. . P^uct frpi^ bny future payrh.eht to the Contr^lbf the'amount bf.any'priof feimbursemer''-

••excess^^.of.cPsts;' - ' '
Exiiibli C - special Proyjsiqiis Cwuractor
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in whiph event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Cpntractpr is
permitted to determine the eligibiilly of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees lo
reirnburse the Department for.all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for seivices
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein."

RECORDS: WINTENANCE, RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIAUTY:

8. Malritenance of Records: In addition to the eitgibillty records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and.agrees tomainlain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1 Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencirig and reflecting all costs
and other expenses iricurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract ;and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, isaid records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficipnlly and
pfoperly reflect all such,costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without.iimltation. ail ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs sucHas
purchase requisilions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valu.^ions of
iri-kirid.c6nt'ributions. labor lime cards., payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Departrricrit.

8.2. StalisticarRecords; Statistical, enrollment, attendance .or visit .records for each recipieril of
services during this COniraci Period, which records shall iriclude.all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provlsiori of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the .
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Departrrienl within,60 days after the ctese pfthe
agency fl.sdal year. It is recommended thai the report prepared in accordance with trie provision of
Officebf Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States. Local .Governments, arid Noh
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governrherital prgarilzatioris.
Programs', Actiyiljes and Functions, issued by the US Genera! Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits,

9.1 Audit and Review;. During the term of this Contract and the period for relentipn hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
d^ignated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

.9.2. Audit LiabHrties: in addition to and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract. It is
understood and agreed by the Conlractor that the Contractor shall l>e held liable for any state
or federal audit exception's arid shall return to the Department, all payrnents made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of .such an
exceptipn,

10. Corifidcntiality of Records: All Information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confider^iial and shall hot
t5€ disclosed by.the.Contractor, provided however, that pursuant te state laws arid the reguialipns of
the Departmerit.regardirig the use and disclosure of such infonriatlon. disclosure rtiay be made to
public Officials'requiririg'such information in connection with their official duties" and for purposes
dii'eciiy'.wjririect^^ the'adrrifriislration of the services arid the Contract; and provided further.-that
;th.e Lisa or disclc^ure by any party of any'ihfprmatiori concernmg a redpie'nt for any purppse not
directly ,cbrinectedvrith th^ administration of the Department or the Contractor's resporislbilities yirith
resped to purchased Services hereunder is prohibited except On"written consent of the, r^eci^ept. his
attpmey or guardian."

EKhtbit C - special PixiMisioiis CornraciOrlrvlicito_
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Notwithstanding anything to the .contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions containied in
the Paragraph shail'survive the termination of the Coritraci for any reason whatsoever.^

11. Ropo^: Fis^l and Statistical: The'Contractor agrees to submit the following reports, at thefcllowing
tinies If r^u^ted by the Departrnent.
11:1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed descriptionof

all costs arid nori-aliov^le expense incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other, infofrination as shall be deemed s^isfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payrnent hereunder. Such Fir^anciai Reporis shall be submitted on the form
designated.by the pepartmenl or deemed satisfactory by the Departrrient.

11.2. Final Report: A final'report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Coritfact, The Final Report shall be'in a form satisfactory to the Department'and .shall
contain a summary state'ment of progress toward goals and objectives stated in theWoposal.
and other information required by the Department.

12. CompieUon of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Departrnent of the
maxirritim number of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations .of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the.terifris.df theiContracl are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or.
survive the termination of the'Cqntract) shall terminate, prbyided however, that if, upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the bepartrtierit shall disallow'any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the fi^ht. its.discretion; to deduct th.e amo'urit of such
expenses as are disall6v«d or to recover such sums'frbm the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and.other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
•.state'riienl:
13.1. The preparation of .this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the Stale

. of Nevy Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Soryices, with funds provided in part
by lhe!Stale of New Hampshire and/or such other fundirig sources as were available or
required, e.g., Ihe Unit^ States pepartmerit of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Oymerahip: All materials (written, wd.eo, audio) produced or"
purchased under the contract shail have prior approval from DHHS before printing, preduction',
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for .any and all original materials
produced, iricluding, but not limlt^ to. brochures, resource directories, protocols.or guideiines,
posters, of reports^ Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior.written approval frorh DHHS.

15. Operatipri of Facilities.: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing iservices, theCdntrac.tbr.sKal! comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
stete.'county and muriidpal authofilles and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
-pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
'Operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any govemmerital licerise or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance ofthe sakJ ̂ rvlces,
the Contractor wiirprocure Mid license or permit, and will at all tirnes.corriply with the tierriis arid
conditions of each such license or permit! In connection with lhe!fofegoing requirement^, the.
Cbntrador hereby covenants and agrees that, during "the term bf this Conlract.the facilities shall,
corifiply writh.alj rule,s.;ordcrs, regulations, arid requirements of the Stale'.Office of the Fire'Marshaland
.the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building arid zpriing c^es; by
laws arid r^ulaiioris,

16. Equal Eriiploymeht'ppporturi'rty.PIari (EEOP): The Contractor wiil provide an Equal Employment
Oppdftuhity Pla'h (EEOP) to Ihe.Office^for Civil Rights,.Qffic» of Justice Pregrams (OCR), if H'has •
.received a single av^rd Of If the recipieri{recerves. $25.0Q0or rriore and h^SO or

ExJiibH c - SpecJar Provi^t« Contactor inliiolo
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more erhploy^es, it will maintain a current 6E0P. on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certi^ng that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public ̂ ntees
,wlth fewer lhan.50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will pro^de an
•EEOP Certification Forrh to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or rhaintain an EEOP. Non
profit ofgahizations. Indiari Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP r^uiremeht, but are required to.submit a cerUficatlon form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Cehificatiori Forrhs arVa\«|tebl€ at: http://Www.ojp.usdpj/about/ocr/pdfs/ceft.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for peisons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorigin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limit^ English'proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance.wlth the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the. Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simpllfi^ Acqulsiiion Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101" (currently, SisO.OOO)

Contractor Employee Whistl£blo»a'er Rights and Requirement To Inform Employes of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employ^ whistleblower pfoteclions establish^ at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L
112-239) and'FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees In writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights,and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as descriljed In section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisiticn Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause, Including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simpiified acquisilion threshold.

19..Subcontractors: OHMS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or .functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function{s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perforrri the delegated
functipri(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specific activities and reporting
responsibllhies of the subcontractor arid provides for revoking the delegation or impqslrig ̂ hctions if
the subcontractor's pierformance is not adequate. Subc.ontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible lb ensure sul)<^htrcictor,cofnpliance
with those conditions,

When the Contrador delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the follov/ing:

19.1. Evaluate the.prpspective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before del^pting
thefuri'ctiori

19.2. Have a vvritteri;agreemcntVrth^t^ suljconlraclor that specifies activities andreporting
resporisibilities and how sanction^revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is hot .adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Cxhihii p -Speddf.f^uvbiunb coouaiabfmnit.. ̂  r, •• ,
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19.4. PTOvide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functldnsand
res^nslbilities, and vvhen the sut>contractof's performahce will be reviey/ed

19.5. DHHS shall, "at its discfetibn, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiericles or areas for improvemerit are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions;

20.1. COSTS; Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense detemnined by the Department
io be allc^ble and reirnbursabie in accordancp with cost arid accounting principles ̂ tablished
In ac^rdahce with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT; NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
-form or forms i^uired by the. Department and cpntainirigi a description of the. services and/pr
goods to be provld^ by the Cohtraclor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
•Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
underthe Contract." . '

20.4. UNIT: For each,service that the Contractor Is to prdvide'.to eligiWe indWduals hdreunder, shall
mean.that period of.time or that speciried activity deterrriined by the Department and'specified
in Exhibit B ohhe Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAVV; Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are,referred to in the Contract, the said reference shairi>e deemed to mean
all such law^, regulations, etc. as they may be.amended or revised from time id.tirrie.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS; Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services,

l^tiibii C - Gpc'ciHi Piovbi^ns CouU^ctortntaials
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4, Conditional Nature of Aareerhent. is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMEhTT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the Slate
hereunder. Including without limilaLion. the continuance of payrhents. in whole,or in part,
under this Agreement are.contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
iricluding any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affect^ by
any state or federal legislative or executive'action that reduces, eliminates,,or otherwise
rnodifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement iand the Scope of
Services provid^ in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
Stale be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds..In,
the eveht .of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available/unds, the
State shall have the fight to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The Stale shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this. Agreement
imniediately upoh giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, "termination or
modificatioh. The State shall not t>e-required to transfer funds froni any other, source or
account into, the Accourit(s} kJenlified rri block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Apdount

, Number, or any other account in the event funds are reducedpr unavailable,

1.2, Section 10. Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Conlraclor written notice that the Stale is exercising its
option to terminate th© Agreement.

10.2 Iri the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
teimination, .'develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agr^nrienl, including but not limited to, identl^ing the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreemerit arid ̂ tablishes a process to rneet those needs,

10.3 The Contractor-shall fully cooperate with the State , and shall prdmplly provide detailed
iriformalion to support the Transition Plan including, but hot limited to, any information or
data requested by the Stale related to the termination of the Agreement and Transitidh Plan
and shall pf6\nde ongoing communication and revisions of the Trarisltion Plan to the .State
as requested.

"ib.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiyihg
seivices urider the Agreement are transitipned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the Stale, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterfupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan,

10.5 The Coritfactor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communications in Its
Transition Plan submitted.to the Stale as descriljed above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon'satisfactory delivery of servrices. available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-t - Rcvi5ion&rEiu::«ptions lo Siaiidcitd Contraa Language Conii.acuv Iretiols
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CERTiFICATION REGARDING DRUG>FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identifi^ in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
iSections 5151 tSI SO of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.SX- 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identiHed in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Pro^sions execute the following Certrficatibn;

alternative I - FOR GfWNTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICUl-ftJRE - CONTRACTORS

This certificaUon Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151.-5160 of the Drtig-Free
vyorik'plac^Actof 1988 (Pub; L. 100-690. Title V, Sul5tit!e D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.), The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will rnaintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.63b(c) of the
regulation provides that a graritee (and by inference, sub-granteesrand.sub-contractors) ttiat.is a Stdte
rriay eled t9:rha!<e one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certiricat^ for
edc^ gfaht during the federa nscal year covered by the certificatibn. The certificate set out belbw Is a
rnatefiai repr«entation of fact upon which reliance is.placed when the agency awards tt^ grant. False
certificatibn or yiplation of the dedification. shall be. grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide,suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Cbhcbrd, NH 03301 -6505

"1. The grantee certifies that it.will or will continue to provide a dnjg-free workplace by:
1.1".. Publishing a staterrient notifying erhployees that the unlawful manufecture, distfibulipn.

dispensing, possession or of a controlled Substance is prohibited in the grantee's
vvbrkplace and specifying the actiondthat will be taken against employees, for violation of such
prbhibiiion;

1.2. Establishirig an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1 ; • The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. 'Any available drug couriselihg. rehabilitation, and erhployee assistance programs; and
1.2-4. The p^nalfies that rhay be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

.bccurring in the.vvbrkplace;
1.3. Making it a requirerhent that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant bO:

glycri a copy of the sibtement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifyirig the ernplpybe in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a cipnditiph of

ernployment under'.the.brant, the emplpyee will
1  , ' Abide :by the te^s of the statement; and
1.4;2." Notify ihe'emplbyer in .writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

•statute.occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
.conviction; ' .

1.5. Nptlfying the agency in.writing, w'rthin ten calendardays after receiving notice under
subpa'ragraph 1:4 2 frprn ari.employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Eimplbyers.df cphvicted employees musl.p^^ notice, ihduding ppsilion'tiUei to.eyeiV grant
;bfficer.bn'v^pse;,gr^^ the.convicte'd employee vvas w/brklng, unless the Federal.agency

. Exhitn D - CertificiUon regartJing Drug Frw Vendor tnltia
Workpl.aM Rcqiriremenls
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h^s designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identl^cation numb6r(s) df.each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one .of lhe ,follo\^,ng actions, vvithin 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee virho is so convicted
1.6.1. Takirig appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

tenrhlnalion. consistent with.the requirerhents of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance of
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3, 1.4.1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sfte(s) for the performance of work done In
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that ore not identified here.

Vendor Name; _

CbroKAULOilq inc

Date NaiT(e: ManOil
T,11^:^0

fixniblt U - CeitjRcuiion fcgewding Dioy ntf Vonaor litiiial
WorkplaCQ Requirements
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1."lot the General Provisions agrees to. comply with the provisions pf
Section 319 of Public La!w101rT2i, Govemrnent wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying/ and
31 U.S.C:. -1352, arid further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as ideritrfi^ In Sections 1.11
and i:i2 6f the Geherai Prpvisibns execute the following Certification:

US DEPARtMENTpF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
■US OEPARtMENT.OF EDUCATiONCONTRACTORS
US pEPARTMEKrr.OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
Progrartis (indicate ajDplicable program covered);
•Teniporaiy Assistance to Ne^y Farnilies under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enfdrcenne'nt Program under Title IV-D
•Social Sen/ices BlockPraht Prograim under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Comrnuhlty Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Develpprhent.Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge arid belief, that:

1. rNo.Federal appropriate funds have been paid or will be paid by or .on behalf of the uridersighed.rto
any person fdr irifluenCirig or attempting to influence an officer'dr. erriployee of ariy agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or pmployee pf Congress, or an ernploy^ of a/Mernter of Congress jn
connection wilh.the awarding of any Federal,contract, continualipn, renewal, ameridrhent, or.
rnqdificatjon.cf any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
siib-graritee or subrcontractor).-

2. Jf any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or/will be paid to.any person for
irifluericing 'or attempting to influence an officer or empkjyee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
ah ofricero'r erriployee of Congress, or an employee of a Member .of Congress in connection with this
i^ederai contract,' grant; jpan,'or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-^raritee or sul>-
contractor), the underslghed shall complete and s.ubrnit Standard Forrri LLL, (Dis.cipsure Fpirm to
Report Lopbyirig, in;accdrdance.with Ks Instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall repu.ire that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under.grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This Certificatipri is a ,material representaliori of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Subriilssion of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering into this

. transaction Irriposed by iSection 1352. Tftle. 31. U.S.Gode. ^y person who fails to file the required
certification shall ,be subject tp.a civil penalty of not less than SI0.000 and not iriore than $100,000. fpr
each such failure. •

Vendor Name:

TU
Date Nam^:

cm ^

ExhIW £-Ceft|fii:atipii ReyaiOiiig LuUUyiny . Vendor inlti^s
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CERTinCATlbN REGARDIN(3 DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor ideritified in'Section i .3 ofthe General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive pffire of the President,'Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 r^arding Debarment,
Susperiisipn. and Otl^r Responsibility Matters, and further agrees .to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sedtiohs 1.11 and 1.12.of the General Provisions execute the follo'A'ing
Certificatipn;

INStRUCTjONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective.primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participatiori in this.covered transaction. If necessary, the prospertive participant shall submit ari
explanation'of why it pannoi provlde.thc certification. The certification or explanation wi! be

■ considered in cohnection with the NH Department of Health and Human .^rvices' (DHHS)
deterrniriatjon v/hether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a .certification or an expianatlon shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certificfation in this clause is a material representation of fact upoin which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to dhlef into this transaction. If it is later delerminee that the. prospective,
prlrnary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedied
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may termiriate this transaction for cause, or defaulL

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written riotice to the DHHS agency to
wtipm this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certificatiqn was!erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circurristances.

5. The terms -covered transaction." ""debarred." "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," 'partlcipanl.* "person,* ."prirhary covered transacllon." "principal,-" 'proposal," arid
■yolunlarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the rncahings set out in the Deflnitiqris and
Coverage sections of the rules Implemenling Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76, S^ Uie
attached definitions:

6. ' The'prospective primary participant agrees by submittirig this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed cdyered transaction be .entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
tr^ansactipn with a person" v/ho is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submittirtg this prpposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certrficatlon R^arding Debarment, Suspension, Irieligibility and Voluntary Exclusid.n -
Lower tier Covered Transadions,' provided by DHHS, without modification, in all loyyer tier covert
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

.6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower (jef covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligibte, or invbiuntariiy excluded
from theicbyered transaction, unless It knqv/s that the certification is erroneous. A participant rnay

•decide the method and'trequency by which it deterrhines the eligibility of Its principals: :Each
participaril may, but is hot required tq, check the Ncnprccurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed .to require esiabllshment of a System of records
in order lo'ferider ir» good fa'rth^the certificatipn required by this'clause. The knoi.vl^ge and

Exhibci r r Cetiincaijon Regarding beparitwni, Suspension yendof Iniii
/yxJUthcrRwponsibilily^lleis
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information of a participant is nek required tp;exceed that wtiich Is normally possessed by a predent
person ih the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for trahsaciibhs authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instructions, if a participant in a
covered transadion kncwngly^ into a lovyer tier covered transaction with a person who is
eusperided. debarred,' iheligibie.:dr vdluritarily excluded frdrh participation in Ihis.trans^ioh, in
^dltjon to other rem^ies'available to the Federal gdvernmenl. DHHS may terminate this trahsadion
for cause or default,

PRir^y COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. the prospective pnrftaiv participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and Its

principdls:
11.1 • are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, dr.

vbluntarity axcluded frdrn covered trarisaclions by any Federal department or agency; •
11.2. have not Within.a three-^year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a ch/il judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or-a 'criminal offense in
conhectioh wiih pbtaihing, attempting to obtain, or perforrning a public (Federal. Slate or local)
.transa^ion dr;a;cqntract under a public transaction; violation of F^eral or State antitrust

•  statuteVor cbrhmissipri of.emljezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, m^ing false staternents. or receiving stolen property^^^

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otheryvise criminally of ciVilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federei.'Slare or Icxfol) withe any of the offenses enumerated iri paragraph'.(I)(b)
of this ceftificallbh; and

11.4. have hot Within a three-year period preceding this applicalipn/proposai had one or more public,
transactions'(Federal. Slate or local) terminated for cause or default.

12'. VVhere the prospective primafy participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this ,
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COSitRED-TFVVN^^^
■ 13. By signing'and submitting this jow^ prpppsal .(contract). the prospeclive.iower tier participant, as

defined in.'45 CFR PaftTe, certifies tp'the best of its k'nowledge and belief that it.'and its principals:
13.1, .are not bfesbntly .debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or •

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
^ ll2. where the pfospectlye ioWer tier participaht is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participaht shall.attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The pfospectiye lower tier partlci'pant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility. and .
ybiuntary Exclusion - Lower tier Covered Transactions," without modrfication in all lower tier covered
tfansactiohs'ahd in all solicltatiohs for lower tier covered tfansaclions.

Vendor Name:

Date ' ^Name:/Wn
Till©: /i:

/CBo

ExhlMi F -.CeittfiocitXiii e^aixirrq Oebariti^A, SuSpvtision venoqr inrasts
And Other RosponslbJliiy Mallets

.'cuiOuiS/iioyVx Date
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CERTIFICAfidN OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of tlie .General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representetiye 'as identifi^ In Sectioris 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor wnll comply, and will require any sutjgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimlnation requirements, which may Include:

- the Omnibus Crime Cpnlrol and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute frorri discriminating, either in, employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race; color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Emptoyment Opportunity Plan;

-the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Sectioh 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, cither in employment practices or in the delivery of.services or
beneftts.. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Emplpymeni Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of .1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. wtilch prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistarice.frbm discriminMing on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, iri regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

7 the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in ernptoyment. State and local
government services, public accorrimodalions, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683,1685-86), which prohibits,
discrimination on'the basis of mx in federally assisted education programs;

- tine Age Di.scfiminalion Act'of 1975 (42 IJ.S.C. Sections 6106-07), v/hich prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age,in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
erinployment discriminatiph;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimin'atipn; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures): iExecutive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based arid .cdmrriuhity
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

•:28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); arid Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112^239, enacted January 2,2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee WhisUeblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal, for certain whistle blovwrig activities in conpectioii with federal grants and contracts.

the certificate set out betow is a rnalerial representation of fact upon vmfch,r^iance,is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False .certification or violation of the certificalion shali be grounds .for
"suspension of payments.,suspension or terminatiori of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarriieht.

Exhibit G

Vendor Initials'
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New Hampshire Depaitnicht of H and Human Services
Exhibit G

In evenia F^eral or.'State court or Federal or State admlriistrative.^ency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin.'or sex
against a'r^ipierit of funds'- the recipient will forward a copy,of the finding to the Office for Civil Rlghts. to
the a'pplicablecontrac^ agency oi-division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the D^rtrtient of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsmah:

The Vendor.Identified in .S^ipn 1.3 .bf the General Provisions.agrees'by sigriature of the Cohtractbr's
repre^ntaliye as identified in Sections, 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provlsipris. to execute the following
cerUfication;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the.prbvlsionis
.indicated above. ' .

Vendor Name;

Date

.Arc

Na/ne; JoV^n/A. MafSni

0?o

e.-?7/i4.

R0y;'l^Vt4

ExNWiO

Vendor Inlllal^
.CtftacoticnolCofrpIwrKe.wtntMjjicnwii: pcrtannoU}.rMO(al^fandl!wri^wIM<->. Hifw TrfistmriiMFam-eaMdOf^'aiR^aria**'

and Vifiisfctlcao/ptceatuens
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 10^227, Part 0 - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), r^uires that smoking hot be permitted in ariy portion of any indoor flirty owned or leased or
contracted for byan entity and us^ roWinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
Of library services to children urider the'age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law.does not apply to children's sen/ices provided in private.residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpalient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to corhply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposiUon of a civil rnonetary penally .of up"to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible enUty.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certificatioh;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable proyisions of Public Law 103-^7, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act ̂  1994.

Date NarTy6; h-

C£0 ^

v

Ttti

Vendor Name:

O&i ^tcsarv:-

Ejdiibii H - Cf^iftcdljon Reoaidlrkj Vendor Initials
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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New Hampshire Departrncht of Health anil Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORtABILlTY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prpvisiphs of.the Agreement agri^s to
comply with the Health Irisurarice Portability and Accouritabllity Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and.Security of Individually Identifiable Health Infprmatidn, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 appjicable'to business associates. As defined herein, "Business.
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents.of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to,protected health infpmiatioh under this Agreeme.nt and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health arid Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

3: "Breach" shall have the sarhe meaning as the term "Breach" in .section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code'of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section -160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered' Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160,103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall haye'the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR-.Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Agareqation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164,501.

f- 'Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care Cf^rations"
in 45 CFR Section ,164:561:

9- 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIH, Subtitle D, Parti & 2 of.the American Recovery and Reinvestrhent Act of
2009.

H. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Pubilc Law
104-191 and the'Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160.162 arid 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shalj have the same meaning as the terrn "iridlviduar in 45 CFR Sectiori 160,103
and shall Include a person who. qualifies as a personal representative.in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164,501(g).

j. "Privacy Riile" shall riieari the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
lnfdriTiaypn^f4,5^ 164. prorriulgated under HIPAA by the United States
.Pepartrpent of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health information" shall have the same rrieaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Sectipn 160.lOS, lirnited to Ihe.infpfrti^ipn created .or received by
Business/Asspcjate from or ph.t^half of Covered Entity.

3f2qu . ExNWl
Hcjilth Insurance PortabllJty Ad
Business Associate ̂ roemenf

Page 1^6'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

P-

(2)

a.

1. "Required by Law'shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section-164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Heatth and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n  -Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

n  -IJnsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that 'p hot
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable; or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or epdor^^d by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

nthpr DefinKions - All terms not otherw/ise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HiTECH
Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected ^
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limrted to all
Its directors officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI; .
I  For the proper management and.administration of the Business.Associate,
II As required by law, pursuant to' the terms set forth In paragraph d. b^low, or
III For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is perrhttted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third Darty Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify BMSiriess
Associate in accordance with the HiPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches.;©! the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has. obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d  The Business Associate shall hot, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services' under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law, syithout first notifying
Covered Entify so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Businf-ss

ExhIWM . ContraciOflniUalJ
I leal'lt Insurance Portability Ad 4h ' i
Business AModaleAarecmcni
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Hurhan ̂ rvices

Exhibit i

Associate Shall refraln'from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. jf the Covered;Entity.notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound, by additional restricllons.'oyer and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards .pf .PHl pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall.be'.bound by such additiohal restrictions and shall not disclose PHI .in violation of
such additiohal restrictions and shall abide by any additional.security safeguards.

(3) dblioations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The, Business Associate shall riolify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediateiy
after the Business Associate becomes a\va.re of any use or disclosure of protected
health' info'rfn'atioh not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected heajth" information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform .a risk a'ssessme'nt when it becomes
aware of;any of the above situations. The risk.assessfnent shall Inciyde, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of. the protected health information Involved, Including the
types,of Ideritrfiefs arid the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o  VVhether the protected health informaiion was actuaNy acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health iriformatiori has been

mitigated...

the Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours o.f the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Coverigd Entity.

c. The.Busiriess Associate shall corhply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notificatiori Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and prqcedures; bo6ks:
■and records relating .to the use, and disclosure of PHI received from, of created :or
received by the Business A^ociate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purpbses ef deterrhihing Entity's compliance .with H\P^ arid the Privacy and
-Sfcurity. Rule,

e. Business. Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
"ac^^s to.RHI uhder.the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the'same^
restrictions and condHlqns on the use and disclosure of P'Hrcbntaiined herein, iricluding
thb duty -to return or^destrqy the PHI as provided under Section 8 (I). 'The^C Eritity
shall be considered ;a;:dirbct ,ihtr'd party Ibeheficiary ,6
agreemeri^ with ContractqH^^^ business associates, .who wiil be.Teceivin^PHI

,  ExhiWtl, Contractor Inii!
I lealih iraorarxa.Rortabiiity Act
Busiivijw Agfbornenl
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New Hampshire Department of Heafth and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
busiriess associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the.standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health InformaUon.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,.
Busiriess Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use apd disclosure
of f^HI to the Covered Entilyl for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Wthin ten (10) busiriess days of receiving a written requeM from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall, provide, access to PHI in a. Designated Record Set to the
Gpverdd Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Oesignat^ Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Eritity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment-to:ertafele Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164'528,

:). Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordanpe with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Busiriess Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility ;of responding to forwarded requests. However, If forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead, respond to the .individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Wthin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Assoctat^,shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
receiv^ ftpm, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement; and shall hot retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If .return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
.the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue ta extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to tl^'^
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Busirie*

Exhibit I Conlractor Iniii3/2014
1 luatlh insurance PortaWlity fiM

Business Associate Agrccmcni
Page 4 of 6
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Exhibit I

Mspciate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its sole'discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to.
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Erititv

a. Covered,Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limjtatipn(s) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
1 W.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure, of PHI.'

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In. or revocation
drpermission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by BusiriesS Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 of 45 CFR Section'l64.508.

povced. entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or,
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR t64!522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In additipn to Paragraph iO of the standard terms and conditions (Pr37) of this
Agreement the-Cdvefed Entity may irnmediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge.of.a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate,
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either imrhediately
terrhinate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to Cure.the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Eritity
determines that neither terminallon nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report.the
violation to ̂ e Secretary.

(6) Miscellaheous

.a- Dennitions arid Reoulatbrv References. All terms used, but not othervrise defined herein,
■shall have the-same;meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time, A reference In the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule rneans the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate aigree.to take such action as is
necessary to.amend the Agreement, from'time to time as is necessary fof.Covered
Entity to'corriply with.the.'changes.ln the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and'state law.

C- . Data Owhefship. The Business Associate acknowledges that rt has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of ;Gbver€^ Entity. '

d. interoretation. ; The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be
to pefTriit Covered Entity;t6 comply with HIPAA, the Privacy ap'd Security Rule '

.  ExWblj I ConlracJor Iniii^
Hce!lh InsuTBrice PoirlabiBty A«.
Business Associato >^reen«nt

Pa^.sprc Oat

Ived



New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
perspn{s) or circumstance is Held Inyaiid, such Invalidity ishall not affect other terms .or
conditioris wtiich can be given effect without the Invalid term or condition; to this.end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in .section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services t X XTTl

The State Name tf the Con ractor

of Au orized RepresentativelureSignatj^re of Autnbri^d Representative

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Represelptative

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

^bbo?n ^
Date Date

3/20U Exhibii 1
i-iciilih insuranca eofiai^liiy Aci
Riisir«j.s Assodate
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit "j

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABtUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT fFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Aocpuntabilily and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of indivdual
Federal graMs^uaJ to or greater'^an $25,000 and awarded on or after October i, 2010, to report on
data relat^ tb'exwutiye coriipen^^^ asMciated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initjai awar;d Is below $25,000 but sub grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the is.subjecl to tiie FFATA reporting r^uirements, as of me date of the award.
In accordah^ with 2,CFR Part 170 (Reporting Suba^rd and Executive Compensation Infpirnation), the
bepa^erit of Health/and Human^Services (DHHS) must report the followlhg Information for any
sutKriiard or contract award subject.to the FFATA reporting r^uirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NMCS.code.for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Aw^ .titie. descriptive of the pun:»se of the funding action
7. Lwratiqn of tiie entity
8. Pnncipie place of performance'
9. Unique ideritifief Of me entity'{bUNS #)
10. Total cpmperisatidn anb.narnes of the top five executives If;

10,'l. . More than M% of annual grois revenues are from the Federal government, arid those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensatlori information is not alre^y available through reporting to me SEC.

Prime grant f^pients must submit FFATA required data by me end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award .qr.awart amendment is rnade.
The Cbntrabtbr'.ld'eritified in Section i .3 of me General Provisions agrees to comply with me provisions of
The FederaLFundIng Acctouritabirrty arid Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporn'rig Subawafd and Executive ̂ mpensalion Iriformation). and further agrees
to have the Cohtractpr's represehtaliye, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Proyisidns
execute the fpllowlng Certificattoh:
The below narned Coh^^r agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
pepartmcnt of Heaim and Humari iServices and to comply with all applicable provisions of me F^eraj
FIriandal Accburitability and. Transparency AcL

Contractor Name:

^Nligss.lrvc

Date A. mhriirc
A

Name:

GfiO

{

Exiiibit .J-Ceftirk»Uori R^vdlng the Funding Coriiractor In'itiab
AccountabiCty And Traiwparoncy Ad <FFATA) Complice®
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FORMA

the Contractor identified In Section i.3.of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed qu^lions are true artd accurate.

1. The DUNS nurhber for,your eritity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or prganizalioh
receive,!! 1) 80 ̂rcent or more of.your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreerrients; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues froni U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans; grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the'answer.to #2 above is YES, please ahssver the following:

3. Does the public have acc^s to'informatloh about the compensation of the executives in ypLrr
business or organization through periodic report filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of .the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 7Bo(d)) or section 6104 of the inlemai Revenue Code.of
1986?' •

NO YES

If the answer to #3 aboye is YES, stop here '

If the answer to #3.aboye Is NO. please answer"the following;

4. The names and compcnsatioh'pf the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are aS follows:.

Name:,

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:.

Amount,

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

Exhib* J r^.Ceitaiwtion R^fd'uig Uie Finteial Funding
AcwOhlability And trahspafdHcy Aci (FFATA) Comptonco
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Exhibit K

DHHS IniFormatipn Security Requirements

A.. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situatiohs where persons other than authorized users, and for an'other thari
authorized purpose have access,or potential access to personally identifiable
infoirriatioh, svh'ether physical or Electronic. With r^ard to Protected Health
Information, ".Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402'dfTrtle 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security. Incident'' shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NISI Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Starndards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Comrnerce.

.3. "Confidential |nfprrnation" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential Irifp'rm^atioh
disclosed "by one party to. the other such as .all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefts and persoiial information Including without limitation, Sub'stahce
Abuse, Treatment Records, .Case Records, Protected Health' Infortriatioh and
Personally Identifiable Inforrhation..

Confidential Infprrnatlon also Includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State ,6fNH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department pf Health and
Huttiari Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of perfonmirig cpntracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disppsitlon is governed by
state or Tederal, lavy pr regulafiori. This Informatiori includes, but is not limrted tp,^
P'rptected Health information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Informatiori .(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Nunibdrs (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" rrieans any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business lasspciate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means en act that potentially viol.ates an explicit or implied security ppligy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access tri a
systern oV its data, unwahted disruption or denial of Service, the unriuthpfized use of
a'systern for the^ proceEsm^ or srtprage.p.f data; and changes to'system.Hardvra
firrpvyare, pf .software characteristics without' the owner's kriowledge, iristniclipn. or
consent. Iricide.nts include the loss of data through theft ,or device misplacement, ioss
6r;misplac'erneri't;of hardcopy documents,■ and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthoriz^
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any neUvork or segment of a network that is
not designated by' the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidiehtlal DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information" (or "PI') means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individuars identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C;F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or 'PHP) has the same meaning as provided In the
definitiori of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart 0. and amer^dments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American Natiorial Standards Insiitute.'

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Gpntractor,
Including but not limited.to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHl in any manner that would constitute a vtolatioh
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The/Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5. Last update 10/09/18 , , ExhlbiiK Conlrador Initials^
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request for .disclpsure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
.subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

•3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictibns;over:and a^ve those uses or disclosures or secuiily safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor rtiust be bound by such
addltj.orial restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The'Cqritractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User rhust only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor.agre^ DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract,

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the.authorized representatives
of DHHS for the puipose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the 'terms of this
Contract.

II. M^ODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application, Encryption. If End User is trahsmiUirig DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications ,have
be,eh devaluated by ah expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
appilicatioh's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2: Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as'a method of transrhittihg DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Erhail. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web.Site. If End tiser Is employing the Web to transmit Cohfidehtial
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be, used and the web site rriust be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also knowh as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mai! Service. End User may only transrnit Confideritial Data via cerf/'/recf ground
mail vvithin the continental U.S.; and when sent to a named individual.,

7. Laptops arid PDA. If End User Is erhploying po'iiable devices to transmit
Confidential Date said devices must be encrypted aixJ password-protected.

.;8. "Qpeh Wirel^s Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Date via an open

V5. Last .iflxlalo ,10/0^18 e>WWt K, Contfaclor Iriitj
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open vyrireless network.

9, Remote User ̂ Cpmmunication. if End User is ernploying remote comrhunicatiori to
awess or transrhit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed oh the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be
trarismitted or accessed.

id. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also kriown as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing ah SFTP to transmit Cor^fidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access 'privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sul>folders used for transmitting Confidential Data wi\\
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

T1. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmittir>g .Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data niu^ be encr^ted to^prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

ill. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The. Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data , collected in
connectiph with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the Uriited
States. This physical Ipcalion requirement Shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes ba^up
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities .are in
place to delect pbtenllal security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department .confidential infonmatioh for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education ,for its End
Users in suppb.rt of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and idehtified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor ;agfees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud, must be in a
FedF^MP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
reguiatiphs'regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices, must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systerhs, the latest anti-viral, antj-
hacker. anti-spa,rri, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

vs. Laslupdale1tV09/18 . EiihibilK Conlrficl.oMnftial
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whole, must haye'aggresslve intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contrartor agrees to arid ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief iriformation Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the!hbsting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Infonnation on its S;ystems (or its
sub-contractor systerns), the Contractor will maititain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract, termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Harhpshire data destroyed by the
.Contractor or any subcontractors as a part.of ongoing, emergency, arid or disaster
r^overy operations. When ho longer In .use, electronic media containing State of
New Harhpshire'.data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance -with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlzatidn. of otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in, NIST Special Publicatipn 80,0-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitizalion. National Institute of Standards arid fechriolbgy,'U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will docurhent and certify in. Writihg at
time of the date destruction, and will provide written certificatidh'to the Department
upon request. The written certification, wiil include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and. validated. .^;ere applicable,
regulatory and profe^iohal. standards for reteritipn feq'uifemehts \vill be jointly
evaluated by the.State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the terrn.ination of this
Contract, Cpntractor.agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

.3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic. Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. ContractPr agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data rece.ived under this Contract, and any
derivatlye data of files, as follows:

1. The Contractor ^.will maintain proper security controls to p'folecl Department
cprifidential infofrriatiori collected, processed, managed, and/or istored in the delivery
of contracted serviceis.

2, The .'Cohtractor vvill maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
•cohfidehtlal informatioh throughout the information lifecycie, where .applicable, (from
[creation, trahsfomiation, use; storage and secure, destructipri) regard!,ess of the
fnedia used to store.the data (i:e., tape, disk, paper] etc.).

V5. LkI update 1<yp9/18 . Exhibit K .Contractor IhitialsV
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3. The. Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidehtial information
where applicisble.

4. The; Cor^tractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
.detect • potential .security everits that can impact "State of NH systems arKl/or
pepartmeht confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5.. The, Contractor will provide regular security av/areness and education for Its End
Users in support oif protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor ;ViriH be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
pfc^ram of an internal process or processes that defines specific isecurity
expectations,-:and monitoring compliance, to security requirements thai at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notificatipri requirements.

7. The Contractor .will v/ork with the Department to sign arid comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures., systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of,
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department ,system(s). Agreements will be
completed ,and sighed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department .determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(B/U^) "With the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreerhent.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities,.thal niay
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be cornpleted
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departrhents discretion with agreement by
the Cohtractor. or the Department itiay request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knov/ingly or unknowingly, ariy State of New Hampshire
' or Department data offshore or outside .the boundaries of the United States unless

prior, express ^written consent . Is obtained from the Information Security Office
lea^dership rriembef within the Department.

11. Data .Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make, efforts to investigate the causes of the breacK promptly,take 'measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the. breach.

■ The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of respprtse and recbyery frbrh

vs. Last ujxJate 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Rcqdrcmonts
Page 6 of 9



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit k

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs aiid
costs associated with website and telephohe .call center services necessaiy-due to
the breach.

12. Contractor rhust. .cpmply with ail -applicable -statutes and regulations r^arding the
privacy and. security of Cphfldenllai information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of .PI and PHP at a level and scope that "is not less
than the level, and scopa of requirements, applicable to federal agencies, including,
•but "hot limits to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Priyacy Act^R^ G.F:R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.lf.R. Parts.ieo and 1^) that govern protections for indiyidually identinable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. .Contractor agrees to establish and rnalntain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality .of the Confidential Data and to
prevent uriaulhbriz^ use .pr.access to it. The saf^uards must provkle.a .level and
S(^pe .of security that is not less, than the level and scope of security requirprnents
established by the- Stale of. New Tiampshire; Department of information fechh'ology;.
Refer to Vendor Resdurcbs/Procurement at.https://www.nh.g6WdoitA/endof/ihdex.ht'm
for .the. Department of Iriformaliori Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procuremerit information relating'to vendors.

1.4.;Cohtractor agrees to mairitain a documented breach notification and incident
fe'sppnse pfpcess. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's .Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the emaii addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, cprrtputer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects of includes' any State 6f New
Hampshire systems that connect to the ̂ ate;pf New Hampshire rietv/orlt.

15. C.ontractor must .restrict access to the. Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only'those'authorized End Users wh'o need such .DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In conhection Nvith purposes Identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractdf must ensure that all End Users:

a. .comply iyith such safeguards as referenced in Section :IV A. above,
implemented to pfptecl .Confidential Information that Is furnished by pHH^-
uridef this Contract from loss, .theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. ,or
PFI are encrypted and. password-protected.

d. send ernqils containing Cpnfidentlal Information only if encrvbted and being
sept- to .and being received by email addresses of person's authorized to
receive,such Irifofrriatioh.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law,

f. Confidential Inforrnation received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as, well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric.idehliners. etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be ericrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above,

h. in all other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used arid

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved,

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and passvyord) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte Inspections to monitor compliance with this
-Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy .Officer arid Security Ofificer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The. Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches invoiving PHI in
accordance'with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Nptification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431,300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with alf applicable obligations^and procedures,
Contraclpr's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify anb convene a core response group to detennine the risk level of Incidents
arid determine risk-based responses to Iricldenls; and
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VI.

5. Determine vyhether Breach notification is required, and, |f so, identify apprppriate
Breach notification, rnethods, tirping. source, and contents frorh among diffeferit
pptions. anci bear costs associated with the Breach notice'as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must 'be addressed and reported, as
applicable, In accofdarice with NH RSA 359-C:20.

PERSONS TO CONtACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPnvacybfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHH^ Security Officer

DHHSlnformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.'gov

vs. I.sst update 10/09/16 ,E)WbilK
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1. William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN

COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 19, 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been
received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65514

Certificate Number; 0004490855

O "9

A

4

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 8th day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Elaine M. Amer hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Cdrporaiioh/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected ClerVSecretary/Officer of Southwestern Community Services. Inc. .
(Corpofalion/LLC Name)

2. the following is a true copy of a vote taken at a nieeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Februafv IS . 2016 .. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date) ■

VOTED: That John A. Mannino as CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Gontract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Southwestern Communitv Services. Inc to enter Into contracts or agreements with
the State (Name of Corporation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or •.departments and further is authorized to execute any and . all
documerits, agreements and Other instruments, and any amendmenls, revisions, or modifications thereto, v/hich
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this yote,

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full,force and effect as of the
date of the contract termination to .v/hlch this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty (30)
days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I furUier certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire v/ill.rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the positionCs)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there-are;,:^iy limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New H^ipshire, all such
lirfiitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

Sighature of Electey Otncer
Name; Elaine M. Amer

Title; Clerk/Secretary

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this -fi day of A^/ir^ . 20_5O,

Bv Elaine M. Amer. Clerk/Secretarv

(Nam^^gfif,|^^j:ted Clerk/Secretary/Officer of the Agency)

i  \J:  I

^

I,

'iz of the roiipc)"

Rev. 09/23/19



/KOORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMR)D/YYYY)

2/5/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Clark • Mortenson Insurance
P.O. Box 606
Keene NH 03431

CONTACT
NAME:

F,.v 603-352-2121 ' noI: 603-357-8491

AnnHFss- csr24admin(aiclark-mortenson.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC >

INSURER A PhiladelDhia Insurance Company 0

INSURED SOUTHWieSTERNCOM
Southwestern Comm Services Inc
PO Box 603
Keene NH 03431

INSURER a Maine Employer Mutual Insurance Co.

INSURERC

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 964223655 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
iNRn

SLiltH
wvn POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
fMM/DD/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYYl LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

E (X] OCCUR
PHPK20006e2

1

6A)0/20I9 6730/2020 EACH OCCURRENCE S 1.000.000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE TO RENTtD
PREMISES /Fa rxvuirrencel S 100.000

MED EXP (Any one person) $5,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY S 1.000.000

GENL A(5GREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000

POLICY 1 151^ 1 ^ IlOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO S 2.000.000

S

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2(XX)704 6/3012019 673(V2020
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

*1000000

X ANY AUTO
BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) S

X X NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPer aceidenO

S

$

A X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LLAB

X OCCUR PHUB681876 6rMV20l9 6/30/2020 EACH OCCURRENCE S 2.000.000

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE S 2.000.000

DED ^ RETENTIONS 10 000 s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y / N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTfVE rTTI
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory In NH) "
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

NfA

3102800768 4/1/2019 4/1/2020 y 1 PER 1 1 OTH-
^ 1 STATUTE 1 1 ER

e.L. EACH ACCIDENT $500,000

E.L. DIS^E EA EMPLOYEE $500,000

E.L. DISEASE POLICY LIMIT $500,000

A Professional Lisblliity PHPK2000692 6/30/2019 6/30/2020 $1,000,000per occurrence
$2.(X)0,000 general aggregate

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Rtmarkt Schadula. may bt attachad If mora tpacals raqulrad)

Workers Compensation Statutory coverage provided for the State of NH
All Executive Officers are included in the Workers Compensation coverage

state of NH, DHHS
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2014/01)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Mission Statement

Southwestern Community Services

SCS strives to empower low income people and
families. With dignity and respect, SCS will provide

direct assistance, reduce stressors and advocate for such

persons and families as they lift themselves toward
self-sufficiency.

In partnership and close collaboration with local
communities, SCS will provide leadership and support
to develop resources, programs and services to further

aid this population.
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To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

i'Rr)R-^SS|i)NAl.ASSiK;L\nO\

Ci:RTIFIED PDBUC ACCOUN'IA.NTS

WOLFEBORO • NORTH CO.mY

1)0\T,R • CONCORD

STKA'niAiM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, functional expenses, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended May 31, 2019.

ManaaemenVs Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this includes the design, implementation, and .maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted, in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An.audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information .

We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies'
2018 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated September 17, 2018. In our opinion, the, summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2018, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which It has been
derived.

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the
Schedules of Functional Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards.generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 5, 2019, on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on pur tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Governrhent Auditing Standards in considering Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Novembers, 2019
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts recelvatitle
Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable

Interest receivable

-

$  882,187
1,245,826

51,722
112,000

45.547

$  1,086,895
1,059,922

35,019

112,000
45.547

Total current assets 2.337.282 2.339.383

PROPERTY

Land and buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Total property ■

19,188,791
554,976

220.291

19,964,058

14,438,178
549,305
39.617

15,027.100

Less accumulated depreciation 7.938.217 4.880.952

Property, net 12.025.841 10.146.148

OTHER ASSETS

investment in related parties
Due from related parties
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits
Other assets

198,728

59,102
849,334

62,996
384

88,706
188,523

517,853
51,996

384

Total other assets 1,170,544 847,462

Total assets $  15.533.667 $  13.332.993

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities
Refundable advances

interest payable
Current portion of long term debt

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$  391,613
119,620

233,900

138,740
180,994

49,547
227,221

$  124,085
206,178
250,692
135,573
193,931

216.438

Total current liabilities 1,341,635 1,126,897

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term debt, less current portion shown above 9.086.445 8,273,983

Total liabilities 10,428,080 9.400.880

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

4,922,671
182,916

3,787,422
144,691

Total net assets 5,105,587 3,932,113

Total iiabllities and net assets $  15,533,667 $  13,332,993

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SnilTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVtCES. INC. AND RgLATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2019

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Wllhout Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

2019

Total

2018

Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Government contracts

Program service fees
Rental Income

Developer fee Income
Support
Sponsorship
Interest Income

Forgiveness of debt
Miscellaneous

In-kind contributions

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services
Home energy programs
Education and nutrition

Homeless programs
Housing services
Economic development services
Other programs

Total program sen,nces

Supporting activities
Management and general

Total expenses

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

GAIN (LOSS) ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

S 10.672,702
2.485.405

995,380

326,558

70,893

7.153

388,849

120,697
241.499

15,309,136

87.608

15.396.744

5,238,483

2,659,830

1,994.872

2,319,865

721,370
894,986

13,829,406

15,709,812

(313,068)

(6,481)

18.116

(301,433)

3,787,422

125,833

125,833

(87,608)

38.225

38,225

38,225

144,691

10,672.702

2,485,405

995,380

452,391

70,893

7.153

388,849
120,697
241.499

15,434,969

15.434.969

5.238,483

2.659,830

1.994,872

2,319,865

721,370
894,986

13,829,406

1.880.406

15.7G9;612

(274,843)

(6.481)

18,116

(263,208)

3,932,113

$ 11,055,093
1,868,188
801,642
50,000

509,229

105,286

6,959

75,971

100,772
161.852

14,736,992

14.736.992

4,847,201
2,530,152
2,172,388

2,043,214

728,119
945.391

13,271,465

1.749.700

15.021.165

(284,173)

(4,583)

Q88)

(288,944)

3,397,772

823,285

$ 4,922,671 $ 182,916 $ 5,105,587 $ 3,932,113

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  (263,208) $  (288,944)
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to
net cash from operating activities;
Depreciation and amortization 580,115 467,929

Loss on sale of property 6,481 4,583

(Gain) loss on investment In limited partnerships (18.116) 188

Forgiveness of debt (388,849) (75,971)
(Increase) decrease In assets:

Accounts receivable (185,904) 265,199

Prepaid expenses 5,509 (3,439)
Interest receivable • (4,480)
Due from related parties 44,240 66,149

Security deposits 5,151 (2,623)
Increase (decrease) In liabilities:

Accounts payable 145,829 (53,220)
Accrued expenses (106,905) (38,863)
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes (16,792) 9,657

Other current liabilities 3,167 (13,125)
Refundable advances (12,937) (44,414)
Interest payable 49.547

-

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (152,672) 288,626

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Increase) decrease in escrow funds (33,568) 5,846

Proceeds from sale of property 215,000 -

Purchase of property, (139,717) (142,791)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 41,715 (136,945)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term debt 40,048 76,143

Repayment of long term debt (160,029) (112,612)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (119,981) (36,469)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (230,938) 115,212

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,086.895 947,175

CASH TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 26,230 24,508

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  882,187 $  1,086,895

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP:
Prepaid expenses.
Land and buildings
Furniture and fixtures

Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits

Total transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP

Transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related parties
Long term debt

Total transfer of liabilities from ne\My consolidated LP

Total partners' capital from newly consolidated LP

Partners' capital previously recorded as investment In related parties

Total transfer of partners' capital from newly consolidated LP

$  203.408 $ 142.467

(22,212)
(2.373,335)
(168,237)
(297,913)
(16.151)

(12,328)
(894.504)
(96.338)

(164,110)
(11,467)

$ (2,877.848) $ (1.178.747)

$  121,699
20,347

85,181
1.332,075

$  1.559,302

$  1,344,776

91,906

$  1,436,682

$. 10,810
11,199

304,073

$  326.082

$ 877,173

(53,888)

$ 823,285

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOUDATEO STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

PayfoB
Payroll taxos
Employee benellis
Retirement

Advertising
Bank charges
Bad debt expense
Computer cost
Contractual

Depreciation
Dues/registration
Duplicating
Insurance

Interest

Meeting and conference
Miscellaneous expense
Miscellaneous taxes

Equipment purchases
Office expense
Postage
Professional foos

Staff development and training
SubscrlpUorts
Telephorte -
Travel

Vehicle

Rent

Space costs
Direct client assistance

In-kind expertses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION

Allocation of management and gorteral e;c>enses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Education Economic Management

Home Energy and Homeless Housing Development Other Total and 2019

Proorams Nutrition Proorams Services Services Proorams Prooram General Total

S  432,968 S  1.224.986 S  377.595 $  775,425 $  414.730 S  432326 S 3.658.530 $  753.068 $ 4.411.598

33.521 97.919 29.527 59.738 33.519 34.195 268.419 58.304 346.723

106.054 415.890 142.654 289.985 97.771 180394 1.232.648 111.111 1.343.759

29.200 70.406 18.908 61.936 27.831 16.181 224.462 71.547 296.009
. 500 1.912 4.013 818 9.487 16,730 - 16,730

. . 4.444 . 1 4.445 7,329 11,774
. 10 . 90 . . 100 - 100

. 24.540 4.759 3.027 14.926 750 46.002 116.846 164.846

629.045 32.930 230.984 36.696 2.719 116.585 1.050.959 39,743 1,090.702
. 28.300 108.291 281.950 . 14307 432.748 147.367 580.115
. 5.277 . 466 868 1.312 7.945 11.879 19.824

. 8.852 . . . . 8.852 4.155 13,007

6.714 14.798 23,590 60.672 14,130 7.164 127.068 33.892 160.960
. 7.775 8,022 21.956 1.610 39.363 164,045 203.408

8.673 813 2.567 8.104 565 22369 43.291 24.957 68.248

181 1.695 637 34.793 3.6S1 2.931 43.868 19.278 63.166
. . . 34.900 . . 34.900 389 35.289

1.292 15.274 . 7.287 . - 23.853 1.160 25.033

24.820 8.499 6.695 11.475 6.458 807 58.754 11.656 70,410

97 268 138 53 214 . 770 24.238 25,008

4.300 1.301 36,095 . . 41.696 90,968 132.664

2.128 1.580 1.678 72 1.904 21,877 29.239 10.590 39.629

. . 655 354 - 1.009 399 1.408

2.087 2.356 18.479 17.817 2.336 1.589 44.664 52.308 96.972

7.951 16.256 15.412 5.163 29.531 608 74.941 4.855 79.796

2.300 5.225 1.088 37.795 44.426 6.568 99.402 13.436 112.836
. 24.800 . 150 . 24.950 - 24,950
. 194,946 332.351 512.392 1.000 376 1.041.065 106.866 1.147,931

3.947.152 214.436 668.284 10.674 23.619 21.049 4.865314 - 4.885,214
. 241.499 . . . 241.499 -

241.499

5.238.483 . 2.659.830 1.994.872 2.319.865 721.370 894386 13.829.406 1.880.406 15.709.812

712.284 361.661 271.246 315.436 96.066 121393 1.680.406 (1.880.4061

$ 5.950.767 $ 3.021.491 S 2.266.118 $ 2.635.301 S  819.456 S  1,016.679 S 15.709.612 $ $ 15.709.812

See Notes to Consolidated Rnanclal Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUWmf SERVICES. IMC.

CONSOUDATEO SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 3i. 201B

Education Economic

Home Energy arrd HornsIsss Housing Dsvslopmeni Olhsr Total

Proorams Nutrition Proorams Sendees Services Programs Pmorem

PaynO S  398.452 $  1.208.631 S  435.536 S  771.028 5  405.169 i  439358 % 3.656.196
Pa^ taxes 31.599 99.682 34.153 56,803 30.416 36.918 289.771
Employee benefits 122.762 453.204 146.394 278393 87.744 187320 1375.517
RetbemenI 24.960 69.878 21,031 64344 19380 17.448 216.821
Advertising . 142 1.897 4.166 2.114 16.172 24.491
Bank charges 15 . 120 3.634 . . 3.969
Computer cost

- 9.185 4J00 14.144 14396 3300 45.427
Contractual 518.340 52.463 242.935 20362 2.718 109.718 946.536
Depredation

- 28.300 108.291 167340 . 16.131 320.562
Dues/registrstlon - 6,036 . 343 988 997 6.364
OupBcating 1.584 6,146 . . . . 0.732
InsurarKe 5.909 13.361 23.653 52.287 14.610 6.248 116,068
Interest . 6,656 7.759 6,907 . 2.554 25,966
Meeting artd oonference 3.061 58 0.293 7,177 600 19.305 40,394
Miscellaneous e]e>ense 009 971 2.303 18,696 '  4.442 16,560 45,681
MJscellaiMous taxes . . . 26,381 . 26381
Eqdpment purchases 4.670 24.320 80 12.348 . 41.418
Office expense 34,413 12,613 6.440 44.506 12.042 4,076 86.090
Postage 132 274 182 31 346 SO 1.017
Professiortal fees' 4.890 . 1375 15.879 . 22.644
Staff development and training 1.430 23.724 2.624 8387 5.675 28,044 69.784

Subsoiptlorts . 26 87 . 115
Telephone 2.066 15.297 10.681 14.569 2.435 3339 57307

Travel 5.335 20.013 20312 5.195 29.509 2.000 82.364
Vehide 2.140 2.510 712 31.828 45.200 9301 91.589
Rerrt

• 25.201 . - 25.201
Space costs 148 140.213 256,849 438.344 1,009 836.563
DIred cflenl assistance 3,683,486 145.220 823.938 14.447 50.531 23,643 4,741.445
bvMnd expenses . 161,852 . . 161.652

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

GENERAL ANO MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION 4.847.201 2.530,152 2.172.388 2.048.214 728.119 945,391 13371.465

ABocsSon o( martagement arrd gerreral ecpensas 639.051 333S73 286.407 270.035 95.995 124,639 1.749.700

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S  5.486.252 S  2.863.725 8 2.458.705 S 2318349 S  824,114 S  1.070,030 i 15.021.165

Managemsrtt

and 201B

and Gsnsral Total

5  774,466 $ 4.432.662
60.913 350.684

54390 1330.107
73.148 280.069

24.491
0.079 13,048

62.052 107.479
14.921 061.457
147.367 487.929
10.175 18.539

4.321 14.053

38.380 154.448
116301 142.467

35.924 76318
13.162 59.063

986 27.367
2.305 43.723

20.402 106.492
22.918 23335
83.766 106.410

2.943 72,727

1.329 1,444

56.576 113,683

3.509 85,873

10.081 102.570
- 25.201

128,066 965.529
. 4.741.445
- 181852

1.749.700

(1.749.700)

1S.021.16S

i 15.021.165

Sm NotM to CoRsoOdstod Flnanclol Sutwwnta
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SOUTHWESTERN COIVUVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

note 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (the Organization) is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-income households In the Cheshire and
Sullivan counties of New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the
areas of education, child development, employment, energy and its conservation,
housing, and homelessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.. and its related corporations. SCS
Management Corporation, SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation,
SCS Housing Development, Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described
below. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support service and
assisting individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them
overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from
governmental contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. and the following entities as Southwestern Community
Services. Inc. has both an economic Interest and control of the entities through a
majority voting interest in their governing board. Ali significant intercompany
items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic consolidated

financial statements.

•  ■ SCS Management Corporation
■  SCS Housing, Inc.
■  SCS Development Corporation
■  SCS Housing Development, Inc.
■  Drewsville Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsville)
■  Jeffrey Housing Associates. Limited Partnership (Jaffrey) - Sold 2/1/19
■  Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
■  Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene

East Side)
" Winchester Senior Housing Associates. Limited Partriership (Winchester)

Consolidation began 8/16/17
■  Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)

Consolidation began 6/30/18
■  Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates. Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook) Consolidation began 5/01/19



Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, inc.
and related companies have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require
the Organization to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net
assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets
may be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

As of May 31. 2019 and 2018, the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information ' should be read in
conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May
31, 2018 from which the summarized information was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Orgariization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it is
recognized as revenue.

I

In-Kind Support

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received. creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized
skill, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.

10



Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2019
and 2018. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

Notes Receivable

The Organization has two notes receivable from an unrelated third party. The
notes receivables are stated at the amount that is expected to be collected at
year end. Interest is accrued at a rate of 4% annually. The balance of the
notes receivable and related interest receivable was $112,000 and $45,547,
respectively, at May 31, 2019 and 2018.

Current Vulnerabilitv Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization is. operated In a heavily regulated environfneht. The
operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules'
and regulations of_ federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such
administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change,by an. act
of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional,
administrative burden, to comply with a change. For the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, approximately 68% and 75%, respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from government agencies. The
future nature of the organization is dependent upon continued support from the
government.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.
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Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation is
provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 - 40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal government. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and impose restrictions on the use of funds received from the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018
totaled $580,115 and $467,929, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts received for specific
purposes are generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses
and conditions are incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the
conditions being met are reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash
and other assets are reported as with donor restrictions if they are received with
donor imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, if a
restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the
Organization reports the support as without donor restrictions.

Income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SCS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss carryforwards totaling $1,012,604 and $915,425 at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset against future
taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS Development
Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $579 and $607 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset
against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2022.
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The tax effects of the carryforwards as related to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31. 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $212,768 $137,408
Valuation allowance (212.768) (137.408)

Deferred tax asset $ :: $ -

Drewsvllle, Jaffrey, Troy Senior, Winchester, Keene East Side, Swanzey, and
Snow Brook are taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes are not payable by,
or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses are included in the partners'
federal Income tax returns based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file income tax returns with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes,"
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for
measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements.
Management has analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on its income
tax returns for all open years (tax years ending May 31, 2017 - 2019), and has
concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's firiancial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an
entity-specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches
to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements,-Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest
priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.
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Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs In
situations vyhere there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958) Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update
addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification,
deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the
lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and
investment return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these
statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the
type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services. The indirect cost rate is 11.96% effective from June 1, 2017 through
May 31, 2020.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate. The
line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
the interest rate was 5.50% and 4.75%, respectively. There was no outstanding
balance at May 31, 2019 and 2018.
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NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31, 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following:

2019 2018

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 96
Main Street). $ 145,647 $ 154,832

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street). 31,589 32,147

5.5% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $978
through March 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (People's United Bank,
Ashuelot). 20,672 31.143

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to' New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project is
sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate ofthe Organization (NHHFA, 17 Pearl). 244,505 244,505

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from which to make a payment, or until
project |s sold or refinanced. The note is secured
by real estate ofthe Organization (NHHFA, 41-43
Central). 376,363 376,363

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2019 and
is now due December 2026. Under the

amendment, interest rate is 4.94% and monthly
installments for principal and interest are $1,957
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (People's United Bank, Milestones). 146,515 162,223
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2019 2018

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured .
by real estate of the Organization (TD Bank.
Keene Office). 2,212,288 2.247,266

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on
contract. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460,000 460,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 63,000 63,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance Is still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and Is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 45,000 45,000

Note payable to a bank in monthly Installments for
principal and Interest of $2,463 including interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted in an

interest rate of 4.67% and 4.07% at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene
Office/Community Way)! 401,891 414,567

5.19% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (TD Bank, 45 Central
Street). 94,733 100,254
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2019 2018

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 125,000 150,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
112 Charlestown Road). 75,000 90,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing in annual payments In the^
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through
July 2042 at which time the remaining balance is
due. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 794,189

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of
the balance is forgiven each year through 2032
when the remaining balance becomes due. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG, Second Chance). 344,536 363,677

6.99% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$652 through June 2019. The note is secured by a
vehicle (TCF, Econoline Van). 1,293 . 8,741

5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econoline Van). 19,287 24,564
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2019 2018
Jaffrey - 30-year deferred note payable to the
Town of Jaffrey, New Hampshire. Payment of
prihcipal and accrued interest at 1%^were deferred
until the note matures in June 2027. The note was

secured by land and buildings. The balance
included cumulative accrued interest of $53,651
(CDBG). Jaffrey was sold during the year ended
May 31, 2019 and the balance was forgiven. - 303,651

Jaffrey - 6% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $485
through August 2027. The note was secured by
land and buildings (TD Bank). Jaffrey was sold
during the year ended May 31, 2019 and this note
was paid in full. - 41 _099

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county in New Hampshire. Payments are
deferred until the note matures in June 2029. The

note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG). 640,000 640,000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy efficiency improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 140.210 140,210

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county in New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred until the note matures in December

2028. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900,000

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capital improvements.
Beginning in 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
mortgage may be released after ten years in
January 2026. The note is secured by real estate
of the Organization (CDFA). 185.899 178,172
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2019 2018

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund
energy efficiency improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The '
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 228,934 228,934

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple interest
mortgage note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due Septerriber. 2033, principal
and interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 282,720

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
September 2043, payable in monthly installments
of $1,698, including interest at 2.35% secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage. 377,110

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable in monthly installments of $2,002
including interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 446,561

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero interest
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (AHF), due June 2034, principal and
interest payable at the sole discretion of the lender
from the excess cash of the borrower determined

by formula, secured by the Partnership's land and
buildings, subject to low income housing use
restrictions for the 30 year term of the mortgage. 237,173
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Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable In monthly installments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's
land and buildings, subject to low income housing
use restrictions for the 30 year term of the
mortgage note (NHHFA).

2019

50,436

2018

53,826

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New" Hampshire
Housing (FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole
discretion of the lender from the excess cash of

the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA). 92,058 92,058

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct sutjsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under
the aforementioned agreement, the loan is due
upon demand with Interest accrued at a rate of
11.67% for the period the funds were outstanding
(Federal Home Loan Bank). 150.000 150.000

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing costs 9,332,609 8^490,421

Unamortized deferred financing costs M 8.943)

Less current portion due within one year
9,313,666
227.221

8,490,421
216.438

$ 9.086.445 $ 8.273.983

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2019 is as follows:

Year Ending
Mav 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Amount

$  227,221
121,051

115,864
115,596

118,605

8.634.272

Total $9,332,609

20



NOTE 4 OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-
canoelable lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods
range from month to month to 2024. Monthly lease payments range from $60 to
$3,625. Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$144,880 and $136,963 respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2019 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Total

Amount

$  78,745
21.677
18,318

1,050

720

120

$  120.630

NOTE 5 ACCRUED COIVIPENSATED BALANCES

At May 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that Us employees had earned and vested in the amount of $131,864
and $130,140, respectively.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is the 100% owner of SOS Housing,
Inc. and SOS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing, Inc. and SOS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners often limited partnerships formed to
develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern Community Services, Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $14,151,000 and $15,5.53,000 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximateiy $35,831,000 and
$41,158,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, provides collateral on
these loans.
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The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the
governing laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required
to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts,
if any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May
31. 2019 and 2018.

NOTE 7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, SCS Housing, Inc. managed
ten limited partnerships. Management fees charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled
$313,466 and $322,973, for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Additionally, SOS Housing, Inc. has advanced the limited
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entities totaled $59,102 and $188,523, respectively, at May 31, 2019
and 2018.

NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial interests in the following companies:

Cityside Housing Associates, LP
^Marlborough Homes, LP
Payson Village Senior Housing Associates, LP
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP
WanAfick Meadows Housing Associates, LP
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP
Westmil! Senior Housing, LP
Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing

Associates, LP

Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP
Pilot Health, LLC

2019 2018

$  (9,500) $  (9,492)
(11) 8

(12,503) (12,491)
(1.897) (1,715)

(21) (17)
222,842 222,846

78 90

- (31,190)

- (60,716)
(260) (243)

- (18.374)

$  198.728 $  88.706
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SCS Housing Development, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Cityside Housing
Associates, LP, Marlborough Homes, LP,' Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, and Woodcrest
Drive Housing Associates, LP, a 0.10% partner of Railroad Square Senior
Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner in Westmill Senior Housing, LP
during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

SCS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook
Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

The remaining 99.99% ownership interest In Swanzey Township Housing
Associates, LP and Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP were
acquired by Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending
May 31, 2019 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership is included in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Winchester Senior Housing Associates,
LP was acquired by Southwestern Community Service, Inc. during the year
ended May 31, 2018 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership is
included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31,
2019 and 2018.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was a 14.3% member of Pilot Health,
LLC during the year ended May 31, 2018. Pilot Health was terminated during
the year ended May 31, 2019.

Summarized financial information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31, 2019 and 2018, consists of the following:

2019 2018

Total assets " £ 5.745 S 32.782

Total liabilities 2,454 47,461
Capital/Member's equity 3.291 (14,679)

£  5.745 £ 32.782

Income $ 426 $ 84,713

Expenses 661 81.478

Net income (loss) £ (235) £ 3.235
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NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity pian under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's

■ discretion and totaled $296,009 and $289,969 for the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018. respectively.

NOTE 10 RESTRiCTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

2019 2018

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund $ .  5,973 $ 21,327

Stand Down - 4,963

GAPSAA/arm Fund 91,908 118,401

Transport 47,260 -

HS Parents Association 6,575 -

EHS 31.200 -

Total net assets with donor restrictions 182.916 $ 144.691

NOTE 11 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT
During the year ended May 31, 2019, the Organization realized forgiveness of

.  debt income in connection with notes payable to Community Development
Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance Authority.
Forgiveness of debt income totaled $388,849 for the year ended May 31, 2019.

During the year ended May 31, 2018, the Organization realized forgiveness of
.  debt income in connection with notes payable to the County of Cheshire, HUD

and New Hampshire Housing. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $75,971 for
the year ended May 31, 2018.
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NOTE 12 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. acquired a partnership interest in three low-income housing lirnited
partnerships: Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook. The amount paid for the
partnership interest in Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook was $1 each, and
at the time of acquisition. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. became the
general partner. The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the
partnership at the date of acquisition:

2018 2019

Winchester Swanzev Snow Brook

Date of Transfer 08/16/2017 06/30/2018 05/01/2019

Cash

Security deposits
Cash reserves

Property, net
Other assets

$  24,508
11,467

164,110

990,842

12.328

$ 12,856
7,330

119,061

1,330,231

6.436

$13,374
8,821

178,852

1,211,341
15.776

Total assets 1.203.255 1.475.914 1.428.164

Notes payable
Other Liabilities

304,073
22.009

666,902

87,108

665,173

140.119

Total liabilities 326.082 754.010 805.292

Partners' capital 877,173 721,904 622.872

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an investment in related parties (53.888) 31.190 60,716

Partners' capital transferred $ 823.285 $ 753.094 £ 683.588
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NOTE 13 AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The following represents Southwestern Community Services' financial assets as
of May 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019

Financial assets at year end:

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:

Due from related party
Notes receivable

Interest receivable

Reserve funds

Total amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

(59,102)
(112,000)
(45,547)

(729.4861

(946.135)

$  2.247.861

2018

Cash and cash equivalents $  882,187 $  1,086,895
Accounts receivable 1,245,826 1,095,486
Due from related party 59,102 188,523
Notes receivable 112,000 112,000
Interest receivable 45.547 45,547
Cash escrow and reserve funds 849.334 517.853

Total financial assets 3.193.996 3.046.304

(188,523)
(112,000)
(45,547)

(444.980)

(791 .oeo).

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately
$1,224,000 and $1,183,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 14 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial, position date,
including the estimates inherent In the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that. provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through
November 5, 2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SQUTHWESTgRN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIgS

CONSOUDATED SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2018

Education Ecor>omic Uartegement

Home Energy artd Komeleas Housing Development Other Total and

Proorams Niitrtdnn Proorams Services .AnrvicM Proorams Prooram General

REVENUES

Gcwemment contracts S 4.846.567 S 2.653.470 S  1.607.664 S  53.038 S  734.566 S  148.424 S 10.243.769 S  428,933

Pregram service fees 572.421 . 74.144 997.150 24.700 772.976 2.441.391 44.014

Rental Income - - 64.704 909.276 - 1.400 995.380
-

Developer fee Income . . . - . - - •

Support 12.751 16.846 123.635 • 168.704 130.453 452491 -

Sponsorship . 2.713 1.104 - - 66.614 70.631 262

.  Interest Income 12 - 2.163 3^11 13 21 5.440 1.713

Forglvertess of debt - - 59.141 329.708 - -
388.649

-

Miscedaneous 2.770 10.369 4.844 69.893 25,146 • 113.042 7.655

Irt-Mrtd contrlbutiors . 241.499 . . - -

241.499 -

2019

Totel

$ 10.672.702
2.465.405

095.360

452.391

70,693

7.153

368.649
120.697

241.499

Total revenues and ottw 8i4>po<1

EXPENSES

Payrol
Payrol taxes
Employee berteflts
Retirement

Advertlsino
Bank chofpes
Bed debt

Computer cost
Contractual

Oepredadon
Duea^reglslraltai
Du(rileatlng
insurance

interest

Meettng ̂ nd conference
Miscellaneous expecee
Miscelaneous taxes

Equlpmerd purchases
Office ed>ense
Postaoe
Professicnal fees

Staff development and training
Subscdpticns
Telephone
Travel

Vehide

Rent

Space coats
Direct cilery assistance

In-kind ei^erses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION

Allocation of manaoement arxl general ea^)enaea

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

9 3.124.919 S 1.9S7.439 S 2.362.276 t 953.129 $ I.IW.QW »  <82.577 S 15.434 968

5  432.968 $  1.224.986 $  377,595 5  775.425 $ 414.730 S  432426 $ 3.656430 i  753.068 S 4.411,598

33.521 97.919 29.527 59.736 33.519 34.195 288.419 58.304 346.723

106.054 415.690 142.654 289.965 97.771 160494 1432.646 111.111 1.343.759

29400 70.406 18.908 61.936 27431 16.161 224.462 71.547 296.009

500 1,912 4.013 818 9.467 16,730 • .  16.730
. . 4.444 . 1 4.445 7.329 11.774

10 90 . . 100 • 100

24.540 4,759 3.027 14,926 750 46.002 118.646 164.846

629.045 32.930 230.964 38.696 . 2.719 116485 1.050.959 39.743 1.090,702

28400 108491 281.950 14407 432.746 147.367 580.115

5477 . 486 688 1.312 7.945 11.879 10,624

8.652 . . . . 6.652 4,155 13,007

6.714 14.796 23.590 60,672 14.130 7.164 127.068 33.692. 160.960

7.775 8.022 21,656 . 1.610 39,363 164,045 203.406

8.673 613 2.567 6.104 565 22.569 43491 24.957 68.246

181 1.695 637 34.793 3.651 2.931 43,668 19.278 63.166

. . 34.900 . . 34.900 389 35489

1492 15474 . 7487 . - 23.653 1.180 25.033

24.820 8.499 6.695 11.475 6,456 607 58.754 11.656 70,410

97 268 138 53 214 770 24438 25.006

4.300 . 1.301 36.095 . . 41.696 90.968 132.664

2.128 1.560 1,678 72 1.904 21.877 29439 10.590 39.629
. 655 354 • .  1.009 399 1.408

2.087 2.356 18.479 17.817 2436 1.589 44,664 52.308 96.672

7.951 164S6 15.412 5.183 29431 608 74.941 4.655 79.796

2.300 5425 1.068 37.795 44.426 8.568 99.402 13.436 112438
. 24.800 160 .

. 24.950 • 24.650
. 194.946 332451 512,392 1.000 376 1.041.065 106,666 1.147,631

3.947,152 214.438 666464 10,674 23419 21,049 4,865414 - 4.68S414
. 241.499 . . . . 241.499 - 241.499

5438.483 4659.630 1494472 2.319465 721470 894.986 13429.406 1480.406 15.709.612

712484 361.661 271446 315,436 98.086 121.693 1.680.406 f1480.406)

S 5.950.767 S 3,021.491 S 2466,118 5 2.635,301 S 819,456 S  1416.679 S 15.706.812 S S 15.709.812

See Independent Audlton' Report
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUWTTY SgRVlCgS INC

CONSOUOATED SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2018

Hom« Energy
Proorama

REVENUES

Govemmeni cootracls

Program service (ee
Rental income

Developer (ee Income
Support '
Sporteorshfp

Interest irwome

Forgiveness of debt

MisceOaneows

In-kind contributions

Total revenues

104.617

23

2.010

Education

and

Nutrition

S 4.934.242 S 2,623,698

35,405

7

126

Homeless

Prtwrams

S  1.920,112

76.506

117.370

99.437

60

1.051

59.141

6.465

S 2.280.162

Housing
Services

47.823

978.904

684.072

50.000

1.362

16.830

42.373

Economic

Development
Services

S  756,952
17,915

139.240

47.352

Other

Programs

166.921

794363

200

130,530

105206

35

Total

Program

10,649.748

1,688,188

601,642

'  50,000

509229
105286

2,478

75.971

98.346

161.852

Management
and General

405.345

6,481

2.426

2018

Total

11.055,093
1.866,188

801,642

SO.000
509.229

105.286

8.959

75.971

100.772
161,852

5  961 459 S 1.107.755 414252 S 14.736.992

EXPENSES

. Payroll
Payroll taxes
Employee beneflts
Retirement

Advertistng
Bank Charges
Computer cost
Contractual

Depredation
Dues/registration
Duplicating
Insurance

Interest

Meeting and conference
Miscellaneous expense
Miscellaneous taxes

Equipment purchases
Office expense
Postage
Professional

Staff development end training
SubscrtpUons
Telephone
Travel

Vehfde

Rent

Space costs
Direct client assistance

In-Mnd expenses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT AU.OCAT10N

Allocation of management and general expenses

398,452

31.599

122,762

24.960

IS

518.340

1,584

5.909

3.961

909

4.670

34.413

132

4.890

1.430

2.086

5.335

2.140

148

3.683.466

4.847.201

639.051

$  1.208,631 S  435.538 $  771.028 $ 405.189 S 439358 $  3.658,196

99,682 34.153 56.803 30.416 36.918 289,771

453,204 146.394 278.393 87.744 187.020 1375,517

69,878 21.031 64.244 19.260 17.448 216,621

142 1.897 4.166 2.114 16.172 24.491

120 3,834 - 3.969

9,165 4.300 14.144 14,298 3.500 45.427

52,463 242.935 20,362 2,718 109,718 946.536

28,300 108.291 167,840 . 16,131 320.562

6,036 . 343 988 997 6.364

8,146 . - - 9,732

13,361 23.653 52.287 14,610 6348 116,068

8,658 7.759 6,997 - 2354 25,966

58 9.293 7.177 600 19305 40,394

971 2.303 18.696 4,442 18360 45.881

- - 26361 • - 26.381

24,320 80 12.346 . - 41.418

12,613 8,440 14.506 12.042 4,076 66.090

274 • 182 31 348 50 1,017
. 1,875 15.879 - 22.644

23,724 2,624 8.287 5,675 28.044 69,784

- 28 87 - 115

15.297 19,681 14.569 2,435 3,239 57.307

20.013 20,312 5.195 29,509 2.000 82.364

2.510 712 31,826 45300 9301 91.589

25.201 . . . - 25.201

140.213 256.649 438,344 . 1,009 836.563

145.220 823.938 14,447 50,531 23,843 4.741.445

161.852 . . . - 161.852

2,530.152 2.172.368 2.048314 728.119 945.391 13371,465

333.574 288.406 270,035 95.995 124.639 1.749.700

$  774,466 $  4,432.662
60,913 350.684
54.590 1,330.107
73.148 289.969

- 24.491

9.079 13,048

62.052 107,479

14,921 961,457

147.367 467.929

10.175 18.539

4.321 14.053

38.380 154.448

116.501 142.467

35,924 76.318

13,182 59.063

988 27,367

2,305 43,723

20.402 106,492

22.918 23.935

83.766 106.410

2.943 72.727

1,329 1.444

56,576 113.883

3.509 65.873

10.961 102,570
• 25.201

128.966 965.529

4.741.445
- 161 RiS?

1.749,700 15.021.165

f1.749.7001 .

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $ 5.466.252 $ 2.863.726 $ 2.458.794 i 2.318249 $ 824.114 S 1.070.030 $ 15,021.165 S_

See Independent Auditors' Report
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gOtmWESTCTM <tftMMllMITY SfBVtCPS. IMC. AMn RFI ATPft COMPAWtPS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOmmES OP FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR EHOCD MAY 31. W«

'  FEDERAL CRAHTOR/

PASS-THROUOH GRAWTOH/PROORAW TTTLE

U.g. 0«Btrtm«nl ol Aflfleultuw

Rint Heuilng PrMWViUan Grant
SpmW SupplwmnlH Nutrition Pregram for
WocMn. Martt. and CMdran (WIC)

CNU and AM Can Feed Ptograrn
Pood CHMflbuOon CluaUr
CeamedUy StcptanMrttf Peed Prograni
6iiarBPB} Peed AnWanri Ptcgratn (Admin)
EnMigancy Food AaMancaPfognn (Feed ComrnedKiea)

TotH U.S. Dapartrnart o( AgrieuAre

U.8. OtBiftmant el Hautinn «»d tJrhan Dewlonmant

Einarganey Solutlona Grant Pregram
Emacganoy SoUlena Grant Pie^ain
Suppordva Hwatng Pregtam
Shatar Plua Can

CoMlnuan o( Care Ptoorarn .

Tetal U.S. OaparUnant of Heuaing and Urban Devabprnara

U.a.l>aeaftfT>afit of Labor

WIOACkiatar

WU Mdt Program
WIA OtdocBlad Werkar Formio Cranta

FEDERAL

CFDA

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRAHTOR-8 NAME CRANTQR-S NUMBER

FEDERAL
EXPEHPrrURE

10.433 DUoel Funding 3403-02601-606

10S97 Slala of NH Dept. of Hodlh a Human Sarvteaa 01000062600000102-500734

10.566 State of NH. 0^ of Educalloa Unkmvn

10.666 State of NH DopL of HaaBh a Himan Siarvteoa 01000042600000102-600734

10666 Corrmurtly Action Program BoBtnap-Uorrknaeli Cautloa Unknown

10660 Commurtty Action Program Baatnap aiarririiaui; Cotftlaa Uiknown

TolNU.S. OapmtmanlofLateiAVtACIualor .

UJ.PaoartmanlotTrananomtlon Fadarat TranaH AitnitnlalnrtlonfFTAl
20Me

20.ai3

Total US. Dapbtmant of Trwaportallen Fodatil Tranalt Admlnlatratlon (FTA)

PoimUa Orstfa tor Rini Araaa

Tranatt Sarvteaa Programa Cluatar
ErMnead MobBty of Sardera and IndMduBla Mtt) OlaaldUtlaa

U.R. l>aiMrtinant ot Vatarana Affalra

VA SwpMttra Satvloaa far Volann FamHaa Ptoffam

Total U.S. DapartmoM of Vatarana Aftabi

UADaoarttnantefEiranv

WaadiorlEatlon titifdanra tor LoarAncomo Potaono

Totd U.S. Dapartmanl of Cnatgy

y^g_^2iyigggLfltlllllttLJLtttiBI!L8lCdSU
Aging Cluatar

Special Prograiha for the Aging. TlOa HI, Part B.
Grata for Swortlva Sorvtoaa and Sartor Cantata

8pacMProgramafortbaAglng.TltloHi, Part B.
Orarta lor StftoOiVn Sarvkaa and Sartor Canlart

Crania to Stalaa to Stfaport Oral Hagfth WetLfortra ActMUaa
Dng-Fraa CommtatBaa Supgen PtoTam Orarta
Aftortatta Cara'Aet (ACAj - Cenaumac .Aiddanri Program Granta
TANFCtnatar

Tempoi^ Aeafelane# for Needy Fatrflea
Lowbieoma Homa Enatgy AaManea (Fuai Aaaialanca)
Lew hoeme Home Energy Aealalanee (HRRP)
Lour heome Hoina Energy Aaaltoance (BWP)
Cemmiittty Sarvteaa Blotk Orart
Communly Sarvteaa Btodt Ocwt • DIaeraliecuty
HMStet

Modleald Chtatar
IMeal Aadalanca Program

TolN U.S. Otpartmont of Hartih S Human Sorvleaa

U.g. Ooprrlmont of HMTtoUrMl Soeuftbr

Emaigahey Food and Shaliar Nattorul Board Program

Tetd U.S. Daparbnact of Homolaid Soeufty

TOTAL

2.8S3

1,444

egoas

14S31

14.231

14.23S

14.33S

14Se7

17SS8

17S78

Slate of NH. 0HH3. Duroou of Homolaoa S Houafcig

Slala of NH, DHHS, Ofltoo of Htrmon Sar/lcoo

State ol NH, DHHS. Bureau of Homalaaa S Houaing

Slate ol NH, OlStS. Bureau of Homolaoo S Houaing
Stale ol NH, OHHS, Bureau ol Homalaaa S Heuaing

Soulhim NH Sorvleaa

SoUham NH Sarvteaa

Slate of NH, Dopetmart of Tranapoctadon

State ol NH, Ooportmoit of Tranapottalton

S4.033 Kartnr Homoa, Ine.

ai.(M2 State of NK,0fllea Of Energy a Planrtng

g3,044 St8tao<NH,Ofnc8o{EnatgyaRwtng

S3.044 State Of NH, DHHS. Bureau of EUatly 8 AduR Sorvleaa

03.236 SttoaelNH,OKHS,OMdon0fFamUyAailatanca
g3.276 Dlracl Fundtog
g3.516 Ofraef FunSng

g3.$SS Soidbam NH Sarvteaa

gases SlataofNKOIIIeaofEnargyaPlarttng
83.668 SlataofNKOfnoaofEnai^aPlantng
03.668 StatoafNKOflkoofEnai^aPtontng
03.660 StataofNH,OHHS.Otv.afFanlyAaManc«
03.570 StataofHKOHH3.0ty,ofFamByAjalatjnci
03.600 Ofrect Fundtog

83.778 State of NK OHHS. Ofllee of Human Sarvteaa

07.024 Site# olMK OHHS. Offloa of Human Sarvteaa

064646468310-717600000-102-60731

01044^70^7-10247^l

064S-064S6310-717eOOOOO-1l)2-$OT31
0s46-064e8310-717a00000-t02-60731

06-064 6466310-717600000-102-60731

Unluvmn

Unkfown

044646464010-2016

04-0646464010-2016

166.462

02.300

0142424010-7706-074-600667

01-02-024010-770647440C667

06-0546-481010-7672

UnknOMi)

6H70SP01(677-06

HCeOCPI

Untovmn

0142-02-024010-77060000<00667

0142-02-024010-77060000600667

0142-<B-02401077060000600687

600731

OfCHoose

064647-470(710921710000

6.324

37.020

4^03,060

106^02

216J21

S 22.076

347,817

131,268

03.373

a 505.433

a 247,881

217,706

281.486
183.421

f 000 402

76.604

a 76.604

S 247,067

26.360

f 274.320

f 07.470

07.470

f 116.164

t 116.164

1 43.2&3

13,470

137.670

6,140

200.634

4,687,172

406,683

22.306

Z32Sja6

12.271

7.867.1)03

f zoee

2.009

t 16.810.820

Sm Notaalo Sehadul* ofExparvdlturaaof Fodoral Awarda



SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
Includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Nonrnonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5 SUBRECIPIENTS

.  Southwestern Community Services, Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended
May 31. 2019.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of '
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related consolidated notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 5, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other IVIatters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance .with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's Internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Novembers, 2019

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies' compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May
31, 2019. Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilltv
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code' of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended May 31. 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
Internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal, control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees,, in the normal course of performing
their assigned .functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Novembers, 2019
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN CQtVIIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. were prepared in accordance with
GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internar Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No .instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, inc. which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for. Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The. programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services: Low-Income Home Energy Assistance, 93.568, and U.S. Department of
Transportation; Formula Grants for Rural Areas, 20.509.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000..

9. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUTHWESTERN COMiVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31, 2018.
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1  Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Board of Directors - Composition — 2019 -j

CHESHIRE COUNTY SULLIVAN COUNTY

CONSTITUENT

SECTOR

Beth Fox

Assistant City Manager/
Human Resources Director

City of Keene

Brianna Trombi

Head Start Policy Council
Parent Representative

Mary Lou Huffling
Fall Mountain Emergency Food Shelf
Alstead Friendly Meals

PRIVATE

SECTOR

Elaine Amer, Clerk/Treasurer

Amer Electric Company (retired)

Kevin Watterson, Chair
Clarke Companies (retired)

1

Anne Beattie

Newport Service Organization

PUBLIC

SECTOR

Jay Kahn
State Senator, District 10

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education
River Valley Community College

David Edkins

Walpole, NH

Derek Ferland

Sullivan County Manager



John A. Manning

Summary Over 30 years of experience with non-profit organizations, as both an
outside auditor and presently Chief Executive Officer of a large
community action agency.

Experience 2014-Present Southwestern Community Services Inc.

Keene, NH

Chief Executive Officer

Has overall strategic and operational responsibility for a community action
agency providing services to low and moderate income individuals.
Programs Include Head Start. Fuel Assistance, and multiple affordable
housing projects. Responsibilities include maintaining ongoing excellence,
rigorous program evaluation and consistent quality of finance, administration,
fundraising, communications and systems; Works with the Board of Directors
and management team to implement the objectives of SOS's strategic plan.
Actively engages and energizes volunteers, board members, event
committees, partnering organizations and funders. Develops and maintains
strong relationships with the Board of Directors and serve as ex-officio
member of the Board. Leads, coaches, develops and retains a high-
performance management team. Ensures effective systems are in place to
measure work performance, provide regular feedback to funding sources
and community partners.

1990-2014 Southwestern Community Services Inc.

Keene, NH

Chief Financial OfRcer

Oversees all fiscal functions Supervises a staff of 7, with an agency
budget of over $ 13,000,000. Also oversees agency property
management department, which manages over 300 units of affordable
housing.

1985-1995 Keene State College Keene, NH

Adjunct Professor

Taught evening accounting classes for their continuing education
program.

1978-1990 John A. Manning, Keene, NH

Certified Public Accountant

Provided public accounting sen/ices to small and medium sized clients,
including multiple non-profit organizations. Performed certified audits on
several clients, including Head Start and other non-profit clients



Kostin and Co. CPA's West Hartford. Ct.1975-1978

Staff Accountant

Performed all aspects of public accounting for medium sized accounting
firm. Audited large number of privately held and non-profit clients.

Education 1971-1975 University of Mass.

■ B.S. Business Administration in Accounting

Organizations American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

NH Society of Certified Public Accountants

Amherst, Ma.



Margaret Freeman

Experience

2000 - Present

Southwestern Community Services Inc.
Keene, NH

, Chief Financial Officer (2014 - present)
Supervising the quality of accounting and financial reporting of SCS; a Community
Action Agency. Total funding of $18 million; federal, state and local funding'sources.
Primary responsibilities include overseeing the accounting functions, implementation
and monitoring of internal controls, reporting financial position to the Board of
Directors, preparation of the annuaiA-133 audit, member of agencies Senior Staff.

Fiscal Director (2000-2014)

Responsible to lead and manage the dally operations of the Fiscal Department of SCS.
Primary duties include budget preparation and analysis, financial statement preparation
and audit coordination.

1993 -2000

Emile J. Legere Management Corp
Keene, NH

Accountant

Provided bookkeeping for real estate management/development corp. Managed 16
affordable housing properties. Responsible for cash management, general ledger, A/P,
A/R, financial statement prep, and audit prep. Leasing Manager of large
commercial/retail property responsible for lease management and marketing of over 30
retail spaces.

Education

Leadership New Hampshire, Graduate 2011

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH
M.B.A., 1999

Keene State College, Keene, NH
B.S., Management, 1991; concentration Mathematics and Computer Science



CRAIG A. HENDERSON

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS
•  Proficient In: Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Internet, Outlook, Photoshop,
•  Ability to prioritize in a fast paced environment and to leani new tasks quickly and effectively
•  Dedicated, reliable and responsible
•  Extensive background in Social Services, Propcrt>' Management, Finance, and Customer Service

EDUCATION

*  B.A Psychology with a specialization in counseling May, 1^9
B.S Business Managemeat

Kecne State College
Keene, NH 03435

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Henderson & Bosley Property Management 8/02-Prc$cot
President Keene, NH

•  Adhering to NH State housing laws and government housing programs
•  Advertising and marketing of vacant apartments, Creating leases, Performing credit checks
•  Property inspections and maintenance- including basic carpentry, landscaping etc.
•  Research and management of investment opportxuiities

Southwestern Community Services 10/07-Present
Director of Housing Stabilization Services
•  Designs and implements svstems to provide efTicient operation of all Housing Stabilization

programs.

• Manages and loads assigned staff to ensure SCS policies and procedures are followed In a manner
consistent with the organization's mission, values, and culture.

•  Participates in the hiring of new employees and oversees the orientation and training of all assigned
staff.

• Maintain compliance with State/Govemment/Agency protocols, procedures, and reporting.

Southwestern Community Services 10/07-Present

AssistautDirectorofHousiDg Stabilization Services Keene, NH

• Monitor quality of services, operation of assigned programs, facilities, and staff.
•  Process and certify tenant/client applications for all Supportive Housing Programs; facilitate move-

in process; track and collect rents/subsidies utilizing Classic Real Estate Software; track and collect
ail match documentation; recertify tenants when necessary and in a timely manner

• Maintain compliance with State/Govemment/Agency protocols, procedures, and reporting.

Southwestern Community Services 02/03-10/07
Long Term Transitional Housing Program Administrator Keeue, NH

•  Responsibilities include; Assisting the homeless of Cheshire County with budgeting and referrals to
other needed services; Advocating on behalf of clients to create new net\s'orks and improve current
relationships; providing counsel through tougli transitions, as well as, creating and maintaining an
environment of success through programs such as Mediation Training, Consumer Credit
Counseling, Psychological Therapy, Parenting Classes, and First Time Homebuyers programs.

•  Basic maintenance of shelter properties and inventoiy coniTol

•  Responsible to track data and create statistical reports based on infomiation collected to assist in
budget allocations for Southwestern Community Ser\'ices

Coldwell Banker/Tattersail 1/02-3/04
Real Estate Sales Associate Keene, NH

-• Assisting buyers and sellers of real estate through customer/client interaction
•  Informing clients/customers of federal and state regulations, financing options, and negotiating
•  Creating marketing plans and researching pricing through competitive market analysis



Vision Appraisal lecnnoiogy 3/UZ-z/UJ

Data Collector , . . . Keene, NH
)  '

• Assured accurate and*consistent real-estate assessments with the etr^ftasis in field work

•• Position required strong attention to detail with the emphasis in propert>' measurement and
appraisal as well as requiring strong customer skill by acting as a liaison bet\veen town assessors
office and the property owner

Monadnet 8/99-8/01

Customer Service Super\'isor Keene, NH

•  Responsibilities include maintaining all major accounts and new account data; managing projects
and delegating responsibilities, A/R and A/P reconciliation, Collections of delinquent accounts.

•  Financial Analysis and Trend Monitoring, Billing Systems Analyst
•  Direct mediation and resolution of customer semce issues.

AWARDS RECEIVED

«  Delta Mu Delta: Natloaal Business Honor Society
•  Psi Chi: National Psychology Honor Society

CONTINUING EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS

04/18/2007 Certified Occupancy Specialist - National Center for Housing Management

09/23/2008 Successful completion of "Landlord and Tenant Law" seminar - Lorman Educational Services

02/23/2016 HUD Certified Hou.siDg Quality Standards Inspector

01/21/2016 Completed 8.5 hours of Nonviolent CrisU Intcn'ention training

04/26/2013 Certification in Fair Housing Law - Granite State Managers Association

08/10/2016 Blood Borne Pathogen Training

08/24/2016 6 hours of comprehensive low income housing (ax credit training - Johnson Consulting Services, Inc



KAYLACHRISTENSON

EXPERIENCE

OCTOBER 2018 - PRESENT

SUPPORTIVE HOUSING CASE MANAGER, SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY
SERVICES

.  Case management of clients throughout supportive housing programs
•  Processing applications, intakes and exits for all supportive housing programs
.  Fostering and establishing relationships with both community partners and local

landlords

.  Completing recertification for all of the supportive housing program residents
•  Collaborating with all Housing Stabilization staff to best meet the needs of the

clients

JULY 2018-PRESENT

CARE COORDINATOR 1, HEALTH CARE REHABILITATION SERVICES
.  Facilitated Family Time visits with children in DCF custody and their biological

parents, using the Family Time model
•  Provided coaching to parents in order to help them increase their parenting

skills and to increase parental attunement
. Working daily with at risk youth and their families
.  Established a working relationship with Vermont DCF social workers as well as

multiple community partners to ensure goals established for parents were being
met as well as coordinating for Family Time visits

•  Daily documentation of Family Time visits, noting where coaching was
needed/used as well as an overall report of each visit as well as any
communications between myself, social workers, foster parents and biological
parents.

2014-PRESENT

PRODUCTION REP I, C&S WHOLESALE GROCERS

.  Analyzed departmental documents for appropriate distribution and filing.

.  Responsible for accurately entering key field information for 5,000+ documents
per day.

.  Assist in training new hires and helping them reach their daily quotas.
•  Record and sort incoming mail from warehouses all over the country.
•  Respond to document requests regarding location of specific PO numbers in a

timely fashion.
•  Daily use of Microsoft Office as well as Kofax.

2012-2014

COPY & PRINT ASSOCIATE, STAPLES

•  Assisted customers in producing their printing needs from start to finish.



Alerted customers to upcoming sales events and promotions.
Ans\wered customer telephone calls promptly and in an appropriate manner.

>  Determined customer needs by asking relevant questions and listening actively
to the responses.

>  Use of Salesforce to call customer clientele to bring in department sales.
.  Filled in for direct supervisor during her maternity leave; responsible for 5 other

associates and maintaining a productive department

2005-2012

CASH OFFICE ASSOCIATE, BUILDING 19

.  Ordered and distributed office supplies while adhering to a fixed office budget.

.  Performed administrative tasks such as recordkeeping, writing correspondence
and gathering materials.

•  Counted cash drawers and made bank deposits.
.  Trained and developed new associates on PCS system and key sales tactics.
»  Ran weekly payroll reports at the store level, making adjustments to timecards

as needed.

EDUCATION

BACHELOR OF ARTS PSYCHOLOGY, SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
UNIVERSITY

Expected gradation date: Fall 2019
. GPA 3.78/4.0

•  Concentration in Child and Adolescent Development

•  National Society of Leadership and Success (Sigma Alpha Pi) 2018

H.S DIPLOMA, WORCESTER VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL HIGH SCHOOL
Graduated with honors, 2007.

SKILLS

Skilled problem solver • Exceptional communication skills
MS Windows proficient • Self-motivated

•  Conflict resolution



Contractor Name: Southwe'sterji Communih' Services. Inc.

Kcv.Pcrwnnel

Name Job Tilic Salajy % Paid from

lliis Coniraci

Amount Paid from

this Contract
John Manning CEO 5132,080 0 0
Mcft Freeman CFO $90,854 0 0

Citiig Henderson Director of Housing
Suibilization.

$5.!,043 4% $2,171

Kayla ChVistcnson Coordinator S3!.720 46% $14,591


